SOUTH LONDON

WASTE PARTNERSHIP
.

South London Waste Partnership Joint

Committee Agenda

Tuesday 2 April at 6:30pm
Merton Civic Centre

Membership

London Borough of Croydon

Councillor Stuart Collins — Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Clean Green
Croydon

Councillor Stuart King — Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport & Regeneration
(Job Share)

Substitutes: Councillors Muhammad Ali and Nina Degrads

Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Councillor Hilary Gander - Portfolio Holder for Environment & Sustainable Transport
Councillor Liz Green — Leader of the Council

Substitutes: Councillors Dave Ryder-Mills and Malcolm Self

London Borough of Merton

Councillor Martin Whelton - Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Housing and
Transport

Councillor Mike Brunt - Cabinet Member for Environment & Street Cleanliness
Substitutes: Councillors Mark Allison and Nick Draper

London Borough of Sutton

Councillor Manuel Abellan - Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Councillor Richard Clare — Vice-Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Substitute: Councillor Steve Penneck

This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and welcomed.
For more information about the agenda or to submit a question (by 12pm on the day
before the meeting) please contact democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or
telephone 0208 545 3357.

All Press contacts: communications@merton.gov.uk, 020 8545 3181

This agenda is also available to view on:
www.croydon.gov.uk
www.sutton.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk

CROYDON
COUNCIL

www.croydon.gov.uk

KINGSTON
UPON THAMES



mailto:communications@merton.gov.uk
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/
http://www.sutton.gov.uk/
http://www.kingston.gov.uk/

SOUTH LONDON

WASTE PARTNERSHIP
.

South London Waste Partnership Joint Committee
Agenda

2 April 2019

1 Welcome and Introductions

2 Apologies for Absence

3 Declarations of Interest

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 1-4
5 Phase A & B Contract Management Report 5-14
6 Budget Update Month 11 2018/19 15-16
7 Communications and Engagement 17 - 44
8 Risk Report 45 - 48
9 Meeting Dates 2019/20

To confirm the following meeting dates for 2019/20:

Tuesday 17 September 2019, Tuesday 17 December 2019,
Tuesday 21 April 2020 and Tuesday 16 June 2020
(The meetings will be held at Croydon Council)

10  Any Urgent Business

11 Date of the Next Meeting

The next meeting will be held on Tuesday 18 June 2019 at
6.30pm at Merton Civic Offices.

Note on declarations of interest

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at
the meeting. If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during
the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter. If
members consider they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which may give
rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this, .withdraw and not participate in consideration of
the item. For further advice please speak with the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance.

CROYDON
COUNCIL

www.croydon.gov.uk

1 ROTAL BOROUGH OF
KINGSTON
UPON THAMES




Agenda Item 4

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.

SOUTH LONDON WASTE PARTNERSHIP JOINT COMMITTEE
4 DECEMBER 2018

(6.33 pm - 7.27 pm)

PRESENT London Borough of Croydon
Councillor Stuart Collins — Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member
for Clean Green Croydon
Councillor Stuart King — Cabinet Member for Environment,
Transport and Regeneration (Job Share)
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames
Councillor Liz Green — Leader of the Council
Councillor Hilary Gander — Portfolio Holder for Environment and
Sustainable Transport
London Borough of Merton
Councillor Mike Brunt — Cabinet Member for Environment and
Street Cleanliness
Councillor Martin Whelton — Cabinet Member for Regeneration
Housing and Transport
London Borough of Sutton
Councillor Manuel Abellan — Chair of the Environment and
Neighbourhood Committee
Councillor Richard Clare — Vice-Chair of the Environment and
Neighbourhood Committee

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS (Agenda Item 1)

The Chair welcomed all present.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 2)

There were no apologies for absence.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda Item 3)

There were no declarations of interest.

4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda ltem 4)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 September 2018 were
signed and agreed as an accurate record of the meeting.

5 PHASE A & B CONTRACT REPORT (Agenda Item 5)
The Contract Manager presented the report.
It was highlighted under Contract 1:

e There had been a reduction of 109,000 tonnes of residual waste, which was a
3.2% decrease on the 2017 tonnages.

Pager 1


http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee

e There were no issues to report.
Contract 2:

e Surveys for all sites reported customer satisfaction levels of above the 80%
target.

e Queue times were improving.

e There was a reduced performance compared to 2017 which was due in part to
the reduction of green waste tonnages due to the dry weather during the
Summer.

e The Household Reuse and Recycling Centres (HRRCs) at Garth Road and
Kimpton Park Way had not met the 70% recycling performance target, with
Garth Road having seen a reduction of 10%. Kimpton had a 4% reduction of
residual waste however that had been offset by the 17% reduction in green
garden waste.

e Trials were currently being run by Veolia in relation to separating paper and
card and on rigid plastics.

Contract 3 was operating well with no issues.

In regards to Phase B (Construction of the Energy Recovery Facility) the Contract
Manager advised that the facility had passed the majority of commissioning tests and
there were currently no issues to report.

Members raised that they would like to see more re-use, particularly in relation to
electrical goods and this would be more effective if it was co-ordinated as a
partnership and possibly online to encourage residents to reuse items more and
undertook to discuss this further.

In response to member questions, the Contract Manager advised that the ERF
remained in the commissioning process and this is expected to be completed at the
end of 2018 or early 2019.

RESOLVED: that members noted the contents of the report and commented on any
aspects of the performance of the Partnerships Phase A and B contracts.

6 SOUTH LONDON WASTE PARTNERSHIP BUDGET UPDATE (Agenda ltem
6)

The Finance Officer presented the report, noting that there were no variations to
report as the forecast remained as per the budget.

In response to member questions, the Finance Officer advised that actual figures
varied from the forecast due to Boroughs recharging each other, however there was
nothing to indicate that there would be an underspend.

RESOLVED: that the report was noted.

7 DRAFT 2019/20 BUDGET (Agenda ltem 7)

Page 2



The Strategic Partnership Manager presented the report, advising that an increase of
£61,200 was proposed, which included a planned resident survey and an increase in
staffing costs due to incremental pay increases and borough pay provisions. A
potential new post is being proposed which would include strategy and
commissioning work and this was currently pending approval from the boroughs. The
post is accounted for in the budget and means we will have a reduced dependency
on external advisors, reducing our costs in that area.

The Communications Advisor responded in response to further questions that in
terms of the proposed resident survey work, this would be the 4t survey that the
Partnership has undertaken and that these were scientifically robust surveys and the
proposed costs were in line with previous surveys.

RESOLVED: That the Final proposed budget for the core activities of the Partnership
as set out in 2.1 was agreed.

8 COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE (Agenda ltem 8)

The Communications Advisor presented the report, advising that the results of the
Plastic Planet Campaign had been positive, particularly in Merton where the cost had
been 3p per 10-second view of the Facebook videos, with the other Boroughs at 4p
per 10-second view, showing that the campaign had performed well.

The Communications Advisor presented the next campaign idea which, following
feedback from previous meetings of the Committee, was in relation to where
recycling is taken after collection and what happens to the materials once they have
been collected. This would be in the form of a short film with 10-second trailers
posted on social media.

The Communications Advisor noted that the trial at Villiers Road and Kimpton Park
Way HRRCs requesting that vans and other larger vehicles register prior to visiting
the sites had gone live the previous day (3.12.18) and that this was being monitored
closely.

The Communications Advisor advised that members of the Committee had visited the
Beddington ERF on 7 November 2018 and had a Q&A session with a representative
from the Environment Agency. The main focus is currently on preparing the
Beddington ERF Virtual Visitor Centre which will be launched in the coming weeks.

Members noted that communications needed to be promoted in each Borough and
that there needed to be more communication on textiles and where these could be
taken. Members also requested that in relation to emissions from the ERF, a
comparable example was included with the figures to help members of the public
understand the equivalent levels.

Members welcomed the short film ideas and requested ways in which they could

promote it once it had been completed as well as requesting notification of any
targets for the campaign.

Page 3



RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the contents of the report and commented on
any aspects of communications and engagement activities relating to the Phase A
and B contracts.

9 RISK REPORT (Agenda Item 9)

The Strategic Partnership Manager presented the report and gave an overview of the
main risks detailed within the report, advising that all risks were being closely
monitored.

RESOLVED: That the report was noted.

10  ANY URGENT BUSINESS (Agenda Item 10)

There was no urgent business.

11 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING (Agenda Item 11)

The next meeting will be held on Tuesday 2 April 2019 at 6.30pm at Merton Civic
Offices.

Signed: ..o Date: ..o
Chair

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 5

SOUTH LONDON
WASTE PARTNERSHIP
L 4
Report to: South London Waste Partnership (SLWP)
Joint Waste Committee
Date: April 2018
Report of: SLWP Management Group
Author(s):

Andrea Keys, Contract Manager

Chair of the Meeting:
Councilor Brunt, Chair SLWP Joint Waste Committee

Report title:
Phase A & B Contract Management Report

Summary:
This report provides Joint Waste Committee with an update on the performance of the

three Phase A Contracts applicable to the South London Waste Partnership:

Contract 1 - Transport and Residual Waste management
Contract 2 - HRRC services - HRRC site management and material recycling
Contract 3 - Marketing of recyclates and treatment of green and food waste

This report provides performance data for the period 15t October 2018 until 31st December
2018.

This report also provides Joint Waste Committee with an update on the Phase B Contract.

Recommendations:

Joint Waste Committee is asked to note the contents of this report, and comment on any
aspects of the performance of the Partnership’s Phase A & B contracts.

Background Documents:

Contract Performance Monitoring updates have been presented to the Joint Waste
Committee since 22 July 2010. The most recent reports were presented at the meeting in
December 2018 by the Contract Manager, Andrea Keys.

Page 5



PHASE A BACKGROUND

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

21.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

Contract 1 is operated by Viridor Waste Management Ltd and includes the
bulk haulage of material and the disposal of residual waste. NB The
disposal element of this contract will cease during quarter four at which
point residual waste will be managed through the 2012 Residual Waste
Treatment Contract (known as “Phase B”).

Contract 2, the HRRC service is operated by Veolia (ES) (UK) Ltd. The
contract commenced on the 15t October 2015 and includes the
management of the 6 Partnership HRRC sites in addition to the marketing
of recyclates collected at each of the sites.

Contract 3 is operated by Viridor and includes the marketing of recyclates
and the treatment of garden and food waste.

The London Boroughs of Croydon, Sutton and Merton direct deliver
kerbside collected residual, garden and food waste into the Beddington
site, operated by Viridor. Up to 20,000 tonnes of recycling also continue to
be delivered to Beddington with the remaining recyclates now being
managed by the collections contractor Veolia.

The Royal Borough of Kingston (RBK) direct delivers kerbside collected
residual, garden and food waste as well as recyclates into the Kingston
Villiers Road Waste Transfer Station (WTS). Viridor operate Villiers WTS
and related bulk haulage services on behalf of RBK under Contract 1.

PERFORMANCE DETAIL

Contract 1: Transport and Residual Waste Management (Viridor
Waste Management Limited)

In the first three quarters of this financial year, the Partnership managed
just under 160,000 tonnes of residual waste, approximately 100,000
tonnes through Contract 1 and 60,000 tonnes as commissioning waste
through Phase B. The partnership has seen a 3.5% drop in residual waste
delivered to Viridor year to date (5,743 tonnes) when the data is
compared to the same period last year. Please see Appendix A table 1a
for further detail.

Landfill Diversion: Viridor has diverted just under 83,000 tonnes of
residual waste from landfill via ERF in the first three quarters of this
financial year. This equates to a 52% diversion from landfill for the
Partnership. Viridor have direction on which boroughs’ waste is diverted to
EREF, largely determined by the location and capacity at the facility
receiving the waste. Please see Appendix A table 1b for further tonnage
data.

The Contract is operating effectively. There were no major operational or
performance issues, no formal complaints were reported, and there were
no KPI failures reported unﬁ)@%n act 1.



2.2,

2.21.

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

2.2.4.

2.2.5.

2.2.6.

2.2.7.

2.2.8.

Contract 2: Management of the Household Reuse and Recycling
Centres (Veolia (ES) (UK) Ltd)

Contract Management: the scope of the HRRC services can be
summarised in three parts: the general management of the sites including
staffing, plant, equipment, and site layouts; the transportation of materials;
and the recycling, treatment, and/or disposal of waste collected at the
HRRC sites (excluding garden and residual waste).

HRRC Site Reconfigurations: upgrades have been completed at all sites.
SLWP is also in discussions with Veolia with regard to further
improvements at the Villiers Road and Factory lane sites following
ongoing reviews, and so further work may take place at these sites in due
course.

The contract specification focuses on three key performance categories;
site user experience, health and safety, and material recycling.

Site user experience: Veolia started customer satisfaction surveys in July
2016 to monitor site user experience. Customer satisfaction
questionnaires are undertaken for two weeks at the six sites in turn for
each round, table 2a of Appendix A details the dates for each round.
Table 2b summarises the top 8 general comments made by customers at
the end of the questionnaire.

The Contract requires customer satisfaction levels of 80% and above at
each of the sites and all results have remained above this contract target.
The key questions are detailed in tables 2c, d, e and f of Appendix A, and
a full list of responses, split-out by borough, will be made available on-line
via the SLWP website following a request by Members at the last Joint
Waste Committee meeting.

Recycling Performance: Table 3a of Appendix A details the recycling
performance by site, by month, and a year to date average — please note
the year to date average is based on the raw tonnage data, not an
average of the recycling performance per month.

Total recycling across the SLWP HRRC sites year to date is 67%
compared to 70% reported for quarter 3 last year. There are a number of
small changes that have resulted in this drop in recycling. Two key issues
are: a 9% drop in garden waste tonnes received at the HRRCs, and
market issues with rigid plastic and mattress (equivalent to 3.6% recycling
across the HRRCs).

All sites are down on their performance last year. Villiers, Factory, and
Fishers have all achieved a reduction in residual waste and total site
tonnage, but this is outweighed by low green waste and high mattress and
rigid plastic tonnes. The Croydon sites combined have achieved 68% and
Villiers 72%. Kimpton and Garth have seen the most significant drop in
recycling.

Page 7



2.2.9.

2.2.10.

2.211.

2.212.

2.2.13.

Garth Road achieved a 65% recycling rate for the reporting period, and
this drop is largely due to a 12% increase in residual waste combined with
an 8% drop in garden waste. The rigid plastic and mattresses are
currently not being recycled due to depressed markets, and these two
materials would have increased the Garth Road recycling rate to 68%. It is
also useful to note that a higher proportion of green waste is now
collected at the kerbside in Merton — in 2017 47% of green waste was
collected at the kerbside, compared with 51% in 2018.

Kimpton HRRC has achieved a 64% recycling rate for the reporting
period. The site saw a 5% drop in residual waste, and a 6% drop in total
site tonnage, however this improvement is outweighed in part by a 16%
drop in garden waste, assumed to be in part due to an increase in green
waste collected at the kerbside (27% of total garden waste in the borough
was collected at the HRRC site in 2018, compared with 30% in 2017).

Table 3b in Appendix A uses data specifically from the reporting period
October to December from the last three years in order to compare
performance year to date. The blue bar shows the recycling performance
for the current year to date and the orange bar shows recycling
performance at the same time last year. The green dotted line and the text
in this graph show last years end of year recycling performance for each
site.

A ‘van and large vehicle’ pilot scheme is being trialed at Kimpton and
Villiers and started on 3@ December. The aim of the pilot scheme is to trial
a way to tackle the illegal use of the sites by rogue traders by capping the
annual number of visits for these vehicle types to 12. A wider clamp down
on traders across all the sites has resulted in a 17% drop in rubble, which
equates to a saving for the boroughs of over £30,000.

Generally, across all sites, increasingly stringent quality requirements for
recyclates and depressed markets are challenging and have a negative
impact on recycling rates. Recycling rigid plastics and mattresses would
have increased the SLWP recycling rate by 4%, so there is renewed focus
on sourcing an outlet for these materials. The contractor continues to
segregate these materials to ensure we have tonnage data and can
respond quickly to any market changes.

Contract 3 — Materials Recycling Services, Composting, and additional
treatment services (Viridor Waste Management Limited)

2.2.14.

2.2.15.

Green waste is delivered to the Viridor Beddington facility where it is
bulked and hauled off-site for treatment in the following facilities: KPS
Isfield and Pease Pottage, Woodhorn Runcton and Tangmere, Tamar
Beddingham and Swanley, and Birch Airfield.

The green waste is processed in order to produce a BSI PAS100 compost
product. Green waste tonnage data for quarter 2 by borough can be found
in Appendix A table 4a.

Page 8



2.2.16. Food waste is delivered to either the Beddington facility or the Villiers
Road Transfer Station facility. From both sites the food is transferred by
Viridor to the Agrivert Trumps Farm Anaerobic Digestion (AD) facility
located in Surrey. The Agrivert facility produces a BSI PAS 110 compost
product. There are no performance issues with this element of the
Contract 3 service. Appendix A table 4b contains further food waste
information.

2.2.17. Alarge proportion of the recyclates collected at the kerbside are now
processed under the SLWP collections contract. Comingled recyclates
that are still handled under contract 3 are delivered to the Viridor
Beddington facility and material meeting the input specification is then
transferred to the Viridor Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) located in
Crayford. Contamination remains an issue and work is on-going at each of
the boroughs to manage and reduce contamination and bring the material
back within the specification. Please refer to Appendix A table 4c.

2.2.18. The twin stream recyclates collected by Kingston are delivered to the
Villiers Road Waste Transfer Station under Contract 1 and transferred by
Viridor to the RBK recycling material processing contract with Veolia.

3. PHASE B UPDATE
3.1. Background
3.1.1. Viridor South London Limited (‘Viridor’) was formally awarded a contract

for the treatment and disposal of residual waste in November 2012. The
Contract involves Viridor designing, building and operating an Energy
Recovery Facility (ERF) which will remain in its ownership and through
which it will dispose of municipal residual waste arising in the South
London Waste Partnership area.

3.1.2. The contract includes the appointment of an Independent Certifier (IC), a
technically competent and qualified advisor, whose role is to ensure that
the facility is able to pass a series of tests which demonstrate the facility
has been built to specification. The IC is independent of the boroughs,
Viridor and the construction contractors.

3.1.3. Full planning consent was granted for the Construction of the ERF in
March 2014, the Judicial Review concluded on the 28t April 2015,
following which Viridor confirmed that Satisfactory Planning, free from
legal challenge, was achieved on the 1st June 2015.

3.1.4. Financial close took place on 9th June 2015, at which point the Sterling
Euro exchange rate for the construction capital was agreed and fixed, in
addition, the construction indexation was also fixed. Following the
agreement of the variable rates detailed above, an updated base case
Financial Model was agreed by all parties and the model was locked.
Completion of the financial close stage provided a revised and more
beneficial ERF gate fee for the Partnership.

3.2. Construction Phase Page 9



3.21.

3.2.2.

3.2.3.

Notice to Proceed (NTP) was issued by Viridor to their engineering,
procurement and construction (EPC) contractors on the 15t July 2015.

The EPC contract was a joint venture between CNIM, the technology
providers, and Lagan, the projects civil engineers. In spring of 2018 Lagan
went into administration and so CNIM have assumed both of the EPC
roles.

The key developments in relation to the Phase B ERF construction are
summarised below:

The first commissioning milestone, and the first duty of the IC, was to
ensure that the plant was safe and ready to receive waste, and this was
achieved in July 2018. Since then, the Beddington ERF has been
accepting household waste from the four partner boroughs. This waste is
used in the operation of the ERF whilst commissioning tests continue.
Testing progressed well, and the facility has maintained a steady export of
electricity to the national grid since November 2018

The next role of the IC is to ensure that the commissioning process has

successfully achieved a pre-agreed list of compliance and performance
tests — the ‘Acceptance Tests'.

Following a rigorous testing and verification process, in the professional
judgement of the technically qualified IC, the ERF facility achieved
completion of the Acceptance Tests on the 4th March 2019 and an
Acceptance Certificate has now been issued. This important milestone
signals a move to Service Commencement and our contract will now
benefit from the full performance management framework (PMF).

During the initial commissioning phase and whilst the Acceptance Tests
were being carried out, the SLWP boroughs have paid a reduced gate-fee
to Viridor. Due to the extended testing period, SLWP boroughs have
saved just over £2m in disposal costs, and that is in addition to the £4.5m
that SLWP forecasted would be saved during the testing period.

Emissions data from the ERF will be published from March 2019, and this
is covered in more detail in the Joint Waste Committee Communications
report to this meeting.

Next Steps:
Before Viridor formally “Take Over’ the facility from CNIM, the IC must also

confirm that all of the wider works on site have been completed and that a
series of ‘Take Over Tests’ have been passed. The collapse of Lagan has
delayed some of the construction work on the wider site, but good
progress now continues to be made. Take Over is now expected to take
place in late spring or early summer 2019. Further performance and
reliability testing will continue beyond this time and maintenance work will
continue throughout the life of the facility.

Given the time that has now elapsed since the award of the phase B
contract, SLWP are planning a review of the redacted contract document
with a view to reducing the amount of information that needs to be
redacted to ensure the coBraaat é)lib(lj'cation is as transparent as possible.



4. RECOMMENDATIONS

41. It is recommended that the Joint Waste Committee:

a) Note the contents of this report, and comment on any aspects of the
performance of the Partnership’s Phase A & B contracts.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS
Legal
51. There are no legal considerations arising directly out of the

recommendation in this report

Finance

5.2. There are no financial considerations arising directly out of the
recommendation in this report

6. Appendices

6.1. Appendix A provides data on the performance of the Phase A contracts

for the reporting period 15t October 2018 to the 315t December 2018.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



PHASE A CONTRACT MANAGEMENT DASHBOARD REPORT Reporting Period: 01 April'18 - 31 December'18
SECTION 1: CONTRACT 1 - RESIDUAL WASTE DISPOSAL

1a- TOTAL RESIDUAL WASTE GROWTH 1b - DIVERSION FROM LANDFILL
CULMULATIVE RESIDUAL WASTE - CURRENT YEAR AGAINST 2 PREVIOUS YEARS = TOTAL TONNES AND % OF WASTE SENT TO ENERGY RECOVERY

m2016-17 m2017-18 m2018-19
250,000

200,000

LBM EFW

150,000
y

100,000
=

50,000
52%
el suwe

APR | MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

=2016-17 19,932 40,609 61,770 82572 103,455 123,209 142,207 162,648 182,432 201,980 219,516 240,135 SLwp RBK LBS LBM LBC
=2017-18 17,544 38,398 57,636 75,817 95036 112,658 130,642 148,410 165,136 184,088 199,259 216,277 LANDFILL 76,997 5,437 14,707 18,566 38,288
=2018-19 18,003 37,995 56,351 74,779 93,283 109,677 126,699 143,352 159,393 EFW 82,396 18,583 14,423 16,438 32,952

SECTION 2: HRRC CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEYS

2a: SURVEY RESPONSES 2b: CUSTOMER FEEDBACK COMMENTS
SURVEY DATES AND NUMBER OF RESPONSES (ALL SITES) SUMMARY OF MOST COMMON COMMENTS MADE BY RESPONDENTS

START END TOTAL

YEAR ROUND DATE DATE  RESPONSES RANK COMMENT COUNT
YEAR 1 ROUND 3 FEB'17 APR'17 1916 Y Staff are helpful 1481
ROUND 4 MAY'17 JUL'17 1555 ' 2 Complaint about the stairs 912
YEAR 2 ROUND 5 AUG'17 OCT'17 1361 - 3 Siteis well organised 353
ROUND 6 NOV'17 JAN'18 1464 4 Site has improved 346
ROUND 7 FEB'18 APR'18 1310 5  Site is convenient and easy to use 283
ROUND 8 MAY'18 JUL'18 995 . 6 Parking could be improved 181
YEAR 3 ROUND 9 AUG'18 OCT'18 831 More staff needed on site 168
ROUND 10 NOV'18 JAN'19 2171 Not happy with queues to enter site 165
2c: HOW LONG DID YOU QUEUE TO ENTER THE SITE? 2d: HOW SATISFIED ARE YOU WITH THE CLEANLINESS OF THE SITE?
ACV\BXM 0 - 5 Mins: 86% ROUND 9
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
m0-5Mins m5-10Mins mOver 10 Mins m Satisfied = Neither Nor  m Dissatisfied
2e: HOW SATISFIED ARE YOU WITH THE SITE SIGNAGE? 2f: HOW SATISFIED ARE YOU WITH THE HELPFULNESS OF STAFF?
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
m Satisfied  ® Neither Nor  m Dissatisfied m Satisfied  ® Neither Nor  m Dissatisfied

Page 13



PHASE A CONTRACT MANAGEMENT DASHBOARD REPORT Reporting Period: 01 April'18 - 31 December'18

SECTION 3: HRRC RECYCLING PERFORMANCE

3a: HRRC RECYCLING PERFORMANCE 3b: YEAR TO DATE RECYCLING PERFORMANCE
MONTHLY PERFORMANCE FOR EACH SITE AND SLWP AVERAGE PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO LAST 2 YEARS
FACTORY | FISHERS PURLEY GARTH KIMPTON VILLIERS SLWP
LANE FARM OAKS ROAD PARK WAY ROAD 80%
APR | 67% 70% 73% 70% 65% 74% 69%
MAY | 73% 71% 76% 70% 69% 75% 72%
JUN 71% 73% 78% 71% 70% 75% 73% 75% 73%
JUL | 63% 67% 68% 63% 62% 73% 66% .
AUG | 64% | 66% | 67% | 65% | 62% | 71% | 66% 0% W
SEP | 65% 65% 74% 67% 66% 72% 68% 67% 66,,
ocT | 63% 64% 70% 62% 61% 72% 65% T
NOV | 60% 59% 71% 59% 60% 69% 63% 65%
DEC | 54% 56% 62% 58% 59% 64% 59%
JAN - - - - - - - 60%
FEB - - - - - - =
AR § - . = ~ . = 55%
YTD 65% 67% 72% 65% 64% 72% 67% ’ Factory Fishers Pufley ~ Garth Road  Kimpton Villiers sLwp
m—— 2018-19 2017-18 mmmmmm 2016-17 e ewTarget e e @2017-18 Out-turn
SECTION 4: CONTRACT 3 TONNAGE DATA
4a: GREEN WASTE TONNES BY BOROUGH 4b: FOOD WASTE TONNES BY BOROUGH
QUARTER 3 2018-19 (OCTOBER - DECEMBER) QUARTER 3 2018-19 (OCTOBER - DECEMBER)
1400 1000
1232 868 873
1200 90 808
800
1000 700
605 31 598
800 764 600
616 609 500 462 4o 473 463 "
600 526 00 386
400 s74 328 300
I 214 I I 200
200
100
0 0
CROYDON MERTON SUTTON KINGSTON CROYDON MERTON SUTTON KINGSTON
mOCTOBER =~NOVEMBER = DECEMBER mOCTOBER ~NOVEMBER = DECEMBER
4c: RECYCLING TONNES BY BOROUGH 4d: WASTE ARISINGS BY BOROUGH
QUARTER 3 2018-19 (OCTOBER - DECEMBER) INDIVIDUAL WASTE STREAMS AS % OF TOTAL WASTE (APRIL - DECEMBER)
2000 1624 1811
1800 1729 SIS 30%
1600
1400 RBK [EPIA 23%
1232 1224 1254 4495 _
1200 1167 1134 1141 4000
800
400
0
CROYDON MERTON SUTTON KINGSTON 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
=OCTOBER * NOVEMBER =DECEMBER mLANDFILLED ®mEFW =RECYCLING =GREEN =mFOOD

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 6

SOUTH LONDON

WASTE PARTNERSHIP
@

Report to: South London Waste Partnership (SLWP)
Joint Waste Committee

Date: 2 April 2019
Report of: South London Waste Partnership Management Group

Author(s):
Michael Mackie, Finance Lead

Chair of the Meeting:
Clir M Brunt

Report title:

SOUTH LONDON WASTE PARTNERSHIP BUDGET UPDATE MONTH 11 2018/19

Summary

This paper provides an update on the Partnership’s budget position for month 11
(February) of the financial year and the projected outturn for the 2018/19 financial
year.

Recommendations
To note the content of this report.

Background Documents and Previous Decisions
Previous budget reports.

1. Background

1.1 The Partnership sets it budget in December for the forthcoming financial year.

1.2  The budget is monitored by Management Group every month to allow the
budgets to be flexed where appropriate in order to respond to any budget

pressures.

2. Financial Position 2018/19

2.1 The table below refers to the Partnership’s budget position for its Strategic
Management activities for month 11 (February) of the 2018/19 financial year.

Page 15 1



It relates to expenditure in the following areas; procurement, project
management, administration, contract management and communications.

Approved Actuals & Anticipate Variance
I Budget Commitment d Outturn £
tem
£ S £
£
Internal and External Advisors 175,000 107,673 118,000 (57,000)
Project & Contract 500,000 492,850 534,000 34,000
Management
Document and Data 24.000 24 577 24,600 600
Management
Communications 25,000 7,845 25,000 0
TOTAL 724,000 632,945 701,600 (22,400)
COST PER BOROUGH 181,000 158,236 175,400 (5,600)

2.2  The Partnership’s budget for core functions forecasts an under spend for the
year of £22,400 (£5,600 per borough). The major variances are detailed
below

2.3  External advisors underspend of £57k mainly due to the ERF contract not
requiring the additional external advice budgeted as contingency.

2.4  Project and contract management overspend by £34k due to additional cost of

maternity cover, the evaluated grades of new posts through the changed
structure last year being higher than budgeted and the impact of increments.

3. Recommendations:
3.1 To note the content of this report.

4, Impacts and Implications:
Finance

4.1  Contained within report.

Page 16 2




Agenda Item 7

SOUTH LONDON

WASTE PARTNERSHIP
4
Report to: South London Waste Partnership Joint Committee
Date: 2 April 2019
Report of: South London Waste Partnership Management Group
Author(s):

John Haynes (South London Waste Partnership Communications Advisor)

Chair of the Meeting:
Councillor Mike Brunt, Chair of the South London Waste Partnership Joint Committee

Report Title:

Communications and Engagement
South London Waste Partnership - Phase A and Phase B contracts

Summary

This paper provides an update to members of the South London Waste
Partnership Joint Committee on communications and stakeholder
engagement activities relating to the Partnership’s Phase A (transport &
residual waste management, HRRC services and marketing of recyclates)
and Phase B (residual waste treatment) contracts.

This report focuses on activity that has taken place between December 2018
and March 2019.

Recommendations

The Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and comment on
any aspects of communications and engagement activities relating to the
Phase A and Phase B contracts.

1. ‘DESTINATION: RECYCLING’ CAMPAIGN

1.1 Atthe last Committee meeting, Members were updated on the
Destination Recycling campaign. Using existing funds in the 2018/19
SLWP communications budget, a film production company was to be
commissioned to produce a short film (no more than 4 minutes) that
tells the story of what happens to recycling and waste after its been
collected from the doorstep.

1.2 The film production company would also create 10-second trailers.

Page 17



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

These trailers would form the basis of a paid-for, targeted social media
campaign to drive traffic to the film (the social media campaign would
be based on the highly successful Plastic Planet campaign, which
delivered an excellent return on investment as reported at the
December 2018 Committee meeting).

The aim of the film and associated social media campaign is to support
the following stated objectives of the SLWP Communications Strategy:

* Continue to reassure residents about where their
recycling is taken and what it is turned in to.

* Be specific, wherever possible, about the destination of
recyclable materials - giving the message authenticity and
building trust.

* Reduce the proportion of residents who have ‘serious
concerns’ that not everything they sort of recycling is
actually recycled from 19% to 15%.

Progress since the last Committee meeting:

* A commissioning process has been completed and the
contract to develop the film and trailers has been
awarded to Radley Yelder, a specialist film production
company with extensive experience of working in the
environment and recycling sectors (one of their key
clients is WRAP)

* Scripts have been agreed

* At the time of writing, filming was due to take place during
week commencing 25 March 2019

* The target is to have the film ready for launch in April.

The film will:

* Use a combination of stills, stock footage and original footage
along with overlaid graphics and animated elements to create a
quirky, stylish and graphical story of what happens to one
person’s household waste and recycling

* Be driven by a charismatic and engaging voiceover that brings
the story to life and helps reassure and entertain

* Be something that our target audiences (particularly 16-34 years
olds) will want to share and talk about; a big step away from
‘talking heads’ and images of recycling centres.

In addition it has been agreed that Radley Yelder will edit the 4-minute
film in to x4 1-minute films (1 per waste stream: food, container mix,
paper and card, rubbish) for the boroughs to use on the relevant parts
of their websites and in organic (free) social media posts.

The social media campaign to drive traffic to the new film will be

launched in May/June. It will paid for using funds from the 2019/20
SLWP Communications budget.

Page 18



2. PHASE A BACKGROUND

2.1 The Phase A contracts encompass transport & residual waste
management, HRRC services and marketing of recyclates.

2.2 From a communications and stakeholder engagement perspective, the
elements of the Phase A contracts that are of most significance are:
* the management of the six Household Reuse, and Recycling
Centres (HRRCs), and
* the landfill operations at Beddington.

3. HOUSEHOLD REUSE AND RECYCLING CENTRES (HRRCs)

3.1 Promotion of the boroughs’ garden waste collection services is due to
take place at the HRRC sites during April (March in Kingston).
Residents bringing garden waste to the sites will be given a promotional
leaflet about the collection service — the key message on the leaflets
being: ‘Spend less time at the tip and more time in your garden’.

3.2 The December 2018 roll-out of a trial scheme for vans and large

vehicles (requiring them to register the day before they visit) at Villiers
Road (Kingston) and Kimpton Park Way (Sutton) went smoothly.
Communications support included:

* Large posters displayed on A-frames at the site entrances

* Leaflets for site staff to hand out to site users in larger vehicles

* Press release

* Social media posts

* Updated text for borough websites.

3.3  Site user customer satisfaction surveys continue to take place on a
rolling basis across the sites. The findings are reported in the Phase A
& B Contract Management Report. Findings reports will also be
available on the SLWP website from April.

3.4 The numbers of site users taking part in the surveys has dropped
significantly in recent months. To some extent that is to be expected,
as repeat users of the site will only want to take part once. However,
the SLWP Communications will be reviewing the process with Veolia to
see what can be done to boost response rates.

4. BEDDINGTON LANDFILL OPERATIONS

4.1 This contract is operated by Viridor on behalf of the Partnership.

4.2 The focus of communications and engagement activities has been two-
fold:

* Educating local residents and key stakeholders about the landfill
operations at Beddington —i.e. how it is providing vital waste

Page 19



4.3

disposal capacity for hundreds of thousands of local households
and businesses and how the site is being managed in order to
minimise any negative environmental impacts;

Providing information on how the 120-hectare Beddington
Farmlands site (which incorporates the landfill) is being restored
into a rich patchwork of habitats for wildlife with public access.

There are no significant communications and engagement updates
since the last Committee meeting in December 2018.

5. PHASE B BACKGROUND

5.1

5.2

The Phase B contract (residual waste treatment) was awarded to
Viridor in 2009. In order to fulfill the contract, Viridor are constructing a
£205m state-of-the-art Energy Recovery Facility in Beddington.
Household waste from the four Partner boroughs that has not been
sorted by residents for recycling will be treated at the facility and used
to generate electricity.

The SLWP Communications Advisor continues to work closely with
Viridor to:

Ensure Viridor are meeting their contractual requirements with
regards to communications and stakeholder engagement around
the construction of the Beddington ERF

Ensure local people understand why it is we need an ERF and
provide reassurance around the safety of modern, well-run
facilities such as this

Ensure the Partnership understands the views of local people
with regards to waste treatment and ERF technologies in
particular.

6. BEDDINGTON ERF COMMUNICATIONS AND STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

6.1

6.2

6.3

At the last Committee meeting, Members were provided with
information on plans for a web-based Virtual Visitor Centre (VVC) for
the Beddington ERF.

The SLWP’s Communications Advisor has been working closely with
Viridor in recent months to develop the VVC and good progress has
been made. At the time of writing, the website
(www.beddingtonerf.info) was due to go live during the week
commencing 25 March 2019.

The VVC is a high quality website where the processes that take place
at the Beddington ERF are explained in an engaging and informative
way. The VVC will be the first point of contact for members of the
community with an interest in the facility.

Page 20



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

The VVC shows the 15 key stages that are required to turn waste into
energy. Each stage is accompanied by text and images (to be
supplemented with professionally-produced videos of the Beddington
ERF in the coming months).

Below are some screengrabs taken from the VVC:

- Kk «* @

0 SOUTH LONDON i issi g
viridor ? WASTE PARTNERSHIP =

L3

Beddington "
Energy Recovery Facility o

Take a tour of the plant, click on a number to learn more o

(]

o]

o]

o

e]

o

o o 0

o]

o]

3

(U]

@ e

< k %« @
0 SOUTH LONDON i e
viridor ? * WASTE PARTNERSHIP =
Into the Bunker ]

(o]

. (o]

How it works

(]

o]

o

o

o

o]

o]

°

o
‘ \ "

P | N

The SLWP Communications Advisor will provide a short live
demonstration of the VVC at the Committee meeting.

The publication of emissions monitoring data from the Beddington ERF
is an important part of the VVC. There is no statutory requirement for
ERF operators to publish data from their emissions monitoring
equipment, aside from the quarterly reports they submit to the
Environment Agency. As a result, the information published directly by
operators varies widely from ERF to ERF.

The SLWP is pleased that the Beddington ERF will adopt one of the

Page 21



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

most open and transparent approaches to the publication of emissions
monitoring data in the country:
« Monitoring data will be easily available to download from the
VVvC
- Data will be uploaded twice every month (see paragraph 6.11)
« A full archive of historical reports will be available
« Clear charts and graphs will show the recordings of the six key
emissions (Hydrogen Chloride, Carbon Monoxide, Sulphur
Dioxide, Oxides of Nitrogen, Total Organic Carbon and
Particulates (dust)
- Data will be supported with a short commentary, explaining any
anomalies

The VVC will provide background information on the emissions
monitoring process, how it's done and the role of the Environment
Agency in regulating the facility to ensure it is operating safely (See
Annex 1).

Guidance on how to interpret the reports can be found at Annex 2 (this
guidance will also be made available to users of the VVC). In
summary:

« There are two monitoring points, A1 and A2, (located at the
base of each of the two flue stacks). A set of emissions
monitoring reports are published for each of the monitoring
points.

« Samples are taken every 10 seconds. At each monitoring point,
Viridor reports against two averages — a daily average, and a
half hourly average

« On the graphs the data is plotted for each day of the month. To
remain compliant with the environmental permit:

o The red line (mean half-hourly average) should remain
below the blue line (daily average limit)

o The red squares (maximum half-hourly average) should
remain below the green line (half-hourly average limit)

o There is no black line visible as it always sits immediately
behind the red line - i.e. 'Mean half-hourly average' is the
same thing as 'Daily average'.

« The tables below the graphs provide more detail on the actual
recordings and clearly the state the number (if any) of
exceedances in the report period.

Detailed emissions monitoring reports will be uploaded twice per month
by Viridor. The latest report available at the time of writing (for the first
half of March 2019) can be seen at Annex 3. This report is also
available to download on the VVC.

Construction work on the on-site Beddington ERF Education Centre is
expected to be complete in the summer 2019. Visits (including a
guided tour of the facility) by community groups, schools and other
interested parties can then be facilitated.

Page 22



6.13

6.14

6.15

The next edition of the Beddington ERF Community Newsletter is due
to be published and distributed to ~14,000 households to coincide with
‘takeover’ of the facility. It will, amongst other things, promote
awareness of the VVC and the onsite Education Centre.

Community Liaison Group meetings continue to be held on a quarterly
basis, with the SLWP Communications Advisor in attendance.

Viridor has produced a short video to promote the Beddington
Community Fund: Beddington Community Fund video. Borough
communications teams have been asked to help promote this via their
social media channels. Members of the Committee are asked to help
spread the word to relevant local community and voluntary groups.
Grants of up to £30,000 are available for groups located close to the
Beddington site (within 2km), and up to £5,000 for those further afield.

7. Social Research study

71

7.2

7.3

Work to commission the fourth triennial SLWP ‘Measuring resident
perceptions of waste management’ survey will commence shortly. A
robust commissioning process will be followed to ensure the SLWP
finds the best social research company to complete this important piece
of work on our behalf.

The findings of the survey will further our understanding of the views of
local people on a wide range of waste related issues, enabling us to
plot trends over a nine-year period, since the first survey took place in
2010. The findings will also be used to evaluate the success of our
communications and engagement activities to date, and to review and
refresh the SLWP Communications Strategy document.

An additional £40,000 has been agreed in the 2019/20 SLWP
Communications Budget to pay for this social research work.

8. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

8.1

8.2

8.3

Legal

None
Finance

The South London Waste Partnership’s Communications Advisor post
is funded through the core activities budget.

A £25,000 annual Communications Budget is available to support
communications and engagement activities.

Page 23



9. RECOMMENDATIONS
9.1 The Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and

comment on any aspects of communications and engagement activities
relating to the Phase A and Phase B contracts

Page 24



Annex 1
Emissions Monitoring Data - Supporting information on the
Beddington ERF Virtual Visitor Centre

The following text appears on the Beddington ERF Virtual Visitor Centre:

Emissions data

Ensuring what comes out of the chimneys is compliant

An essential part of turning waste into energy is combustion. When waste is
combusted (burnt), it produces gasses (emissions) which, if left untreated, have the
potential to be harmful to the environment and human health. That is why it’s not
advisable to burn rubbish in your back garden. It’s also why one third of the
Beddington ERF is dedicated to cleaning these gasses to ensure that what'’s
released into the atmosphere (via the two flue stacks, or ‘chimneys’) is safe and will
not harm the local environment or the health of local people.

Monitoring emissions

Emissions from the Beddington ERF are monitored every 10 seconds, 7 days a
week, 365 days a year. Samples are taken from the gasses in the flue stacks. The
results are fed back to the ERF control room, so any potential issues are known
about immediately and appropriate action can be taken.

Regulation

The emissions from the Beddington ERF are closely monitored by the Environment
Agency, who set strict limits (based on half hourly and daily averages) for different
types of emissions (see below). If any of these limits are breached, Viridor must
inform the Environment Agency within 24 hours. Viridor must also submit quarterly
emissions monitoring reports to the Environment Agency. In the event of issues or
problems, the Environment Agency has the power to revoke a facility’s
Environmental Permit and prevent it from operating.

The Beddington ERF has been designed to operate at the very highest international
standards and under normal operating conditions, emissions are well below the limits
set by the Environment Agency.

Providing local people with reassurance

Viridor and the South London Waste Partnership recognise that the safety of the
facility is a very important issue for people who live in Beddington and the
surrounding areas.

To provide reassurance that the facility is safe and does not pose a threat to human
health or the local environment, Viridor makes emissions monitoring reports available
for anyone to view twice per month. These reports can be downloaded (in pdf format)
from the following link: Emissions monitoring reports from the Beddington ERF

Page 25



What emissions are monitored?

The following emissions are monitored on a continuous basis at the Beddington ERF
as they are all a product of the combustion process:

Dust (Particulates) - Particulate Matter is generally categorised on the basis of
the size of the particles. It is made up of a wide range of materials and can
arise from a variety of sources. Particulate Matter derives from both human-
made and natural sources, such as sea spray, Saharan dust and volcanic
eruptions. In the UK one of the biggest human-made sources of particulate
matter is transport.

Total Organic Carbon - Total Organic Carbon is part of a group of liquids and
gases often called volatile organic compounds (VOCs). Many industrial
processes emit VOCs including printing, surface coating and painting,
however, households and road transport also contribute a substantial fraction.
Hydrogen Chloride (HCI) - At room temperature, Hydrogen Chloride exists as
either a colourless or slightly yellow gas. The main source of Hydrogen
Chloride is old coal burning power stations.

Carbon Monoxide (CO) - Carbon Monoxide is formed from incomplete
combustion of carbon-containing fuels. The largest source is from road
transport; older vehicles which do not have catalytic convertors produce
significant amounts with newer cars producing very little.

Sulphur Dioxide (SO2)- UK emissions are dominated by combustion of fuels
containing Sulphur, such as coal and heavy oils by power stations and
refineries. In some parts of the UK, notably Northern Ireland, coal for domestic
use is a significant source.

Oxides of Nitrogen - All combustion processes in air produce oxides of
nitrogen (NOXx). Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and nitric oxide (NO) are both oxides
of nitrogen and together are referred to as NOx Road transport is the main
source, but this can also be formed in lightning storms and from natural
breakdown processes in soil and water.

What are the emissions limits?

The daily average emissions limits for the Beddington ERF are some of the strictest
in the country:

Dust (Particulates) 10mg/m?
Total Organic Carbon 10mg/m?3
Hydrogen Chloride 10mg/m?
Carbon Monoxide 50mg/m?
Sulphur Dioxide 50mg/m?
Oxides of Nitrogen 165mg/m?

Ensuring measurements are accurate

It is vital that the specialist equipment taking gas samples from the flue stacks of the
Beddington ERF are operating correctly and taking accurate measurements. To
ensure this is the case, the Environment Agency put the equipment through a
rigorous three-stage testing and quality assurance process:

Firstly, in order to meet the requirements of the Industrial Emissions Directive,
the monitoring equipment must meet certain performance requirements
evaluated under the Environment Agency’s Monitoring Certification Scheme.

Page 26



The second level of quality assurance calibrates the instruments: An
independent test house carries out this calibration every three years. In
addition, each year an Annual Surveillance Test is carried out to ensure that
the calibration function and variability remain as previously determined.
Finally, Viridor are required to regularly measure the drift and precision of the
monitoring equipment using a specified gas of known composition.

Page 27



Annex 2
Guide: How to interpret the Emissions Data Monitoring Reports

Confirmation of the Each component that is
ERF being monitored monitored has a separate

report

@ & o g Powst A1 Pae e md "
Maximum half-hourly emission limit

Date of the report

The line = the RN - . value (the maximum permitted in a 30
average 30 minute window)

mlqutg Maximum daily average emission limit
emissions for -

R s R value (the maximum permitted in the

the ERF e day)

Thesquare: oo I. 'u..n n.D - :1«- - - S :
therpaximum T Em M T RO OLOBSE6G60660606808 16600t BEEEEE Each day of the month is
30 minute = = T TR T - OEE L] recorded
average for B e e e e e aa e R S
theERF - — wnv ':1:--:'::!11":-)‘1'-':&-‘ ‘-: x-‘: w oy
T L e B S I SIS Vs et

e
Arant - -

The bottom row indicates any
exceedances of the permit — YES or NO

Parmt Rutrernos Nemter | 991 ) TRIMCT Opentor - Vikdon
TSRS bedaegor P Nt Ou of Forme 250120
Repoeting of C Iy M d Emix to Alr for P, mgim3 at & lon Point A1 For the month of January 2019
nally it M Bnaty Avwwige Moa s aoy Castn
n e
- -t
W S
— P
A e

S o Ay Ay
B s e

"y
e ——————— L L T T TS ———
33
P - -
’ IR EEEEEEEEEEE -
Mty sy fwe BB EDED D EEDE R E D EEEE E REREEREED
Sty w1 B) 0] 00 g el ped 200 000 00l 20 20| sul o and a0h el ool anl ] on ] wnd el od ool 00 el o] el oe ) el el
W - —— o M tae® Ny et g spsfofafofolrcloloofefefofefrjolnolrfnfefofo]o]a] ] n]ononon
el 9 e ity g Slofnfofofofololoofnfefafofoafofofofofnfofefofofefo]so]n|ofonfon
Bl i e et g llll|'o'o,ltlo¢0-lcutoc-c:n-qqq
Data el 4 J Er—ep—, llllll.llll.ll..lllll...llllllt\
e i—— 0 3 o et # UL OHHEEEHEEEEOEHEEEEDEgEEgganm
— NIEEEEEECEEEECECEDECEECEEREEEEER
summary Teny e [ET—— efe]ofefefe)ofel o] ofcfefefefefofofe]afafefefelelc]s]s]> Raw data
—— B — DEHBEEEEEE OO NEgEOEnnn """l'
[EEEp——— Vi Eomin % sisfafsiuinintnfafafsfafababninfalafafafalndsia]nfafs]sfsfs]n
Sgres Owie.
.. N

This is the number of exceedances within the given
time frame. These are ‘0’ in this report meaning there
have been no exceedances of the Beddington ERF
environmental permit

Page 28



Annex 3
Emissions Monitoring Reports
Beddington ERF Emissions Monitoring Data Report for March 2019.

Page 29



443 uoi3uippag 1e sa8eue|\ AlajeS pue yjjeaH ‘Juswuodinug
uINHON 1249

IN‘02 JOpUIA@auo1Sulppag
:}0B3UOD 0} 93e}ISay jou op ased|d ‘4y3 uol3uippag ay3 e suoj3esado 4o SulojuOW SUOISSIWD 3y} Inoge saldanb Jo suoisanb Aue aney noA §|

"S|9A9| SUOISSIWD 3ua3ulIIs MOjag pue Ajajes alesado Asylaunsus 03 palsal
pUEB UOI}B|0S| Ul UO PAYIIMS 443 3y} josiusuodwod |jesaasieylaseyd e uonesiwizdo ssasoud jo sadeis|euly sy Ul SaNUIIUOI AYlj1oe) 9y ‘Aj3ua3sIsuod unisey 4439yl YdJen uj

uonetado

‘(32e1s @njy yoes Jo aseq syl 1e gy pue Ty) siutod Suliouow 0M] Y3 4O JSYHS 1B SHWI| SUOISSIWD
98eJsane Ajunoy-jjey Jo Ajiep 9y3 J9Y3}Io JO SOYIEIIq OU 3J9M D43Y] "SDWI || 3B SHWIT SUOISSIWTF 3143S SH Uly3im paresado 443 uoiduippag ayi ‘porsad Suiniodad sayrinoydnoay

douejdwo)

1°3d 6T0C Y21\ 110dad suoissiwd 443 uoi3uippag

A0PUIA )

Page 30



(doje12dO 9Yy) Jo aajeluasaldal e se ubis o] pasuoyiny)

bl eo-zT * UYMW S — TRV v g e
NIN[N]JN|N|N|IN|[N|NIN|N|IN|NJN|IN|N|JN|NIN|JN|N|N|N|N|IN|N[N|N|N|IN|N ¢N\13 SpasdXxg anjep 0 S80UEPI3X3 Jo NG
ALALALTALTATALTALALTALATALATALTALALALTALTALALTALTALALALTALATALIALTALTALALA ZPleA OnjeA 0 sAep piieaul jo oN sbesone
HO|HOo[H4O|HO|sO|HO O8O0l 0 0|JOJOJOJOJOJOJOJOJ]OJOJOJO|jOjoO|lO]J]OJO]JO]|oO]oO sbessne Alea 0 wnuiixew Alyjuoly Areq
OL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OL]OL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OLJOL|OL]OL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OLJOL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OL]|OL A3 ebeiane Areg
HO|HO|HO|HO|HO|HO|HO|HO|HOl 0jJO|O|jO}JOJO|JOjO|JOfjOjJOJOjO|jOjOjJoO]jO|joOjJO]jOjoO]oO 13 JO S8OUEPS39Xa JO ON 0 S8OUBPa3dX3 JO Wng
ojojojojojojojoyojojojojojyojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojofo sjnsal plieau] Jo oN 0 SHnsal pijeAu] [Bjo|
BO|HO[HO|HO|HO|sO|OYO|¥0l 00Ol OJOJOJOJ0O}JOJOJOJ]O|JOJOJOjOjO|joO]jOojJO]JO]|O}O abesane Aunoy-jeH wnuwiuiy 0 wnuwiuw Alyuoiy obesone
JOluO|4O| OO oMo (HO|M0l 0 OfOJOfOJOfO}JO|OJO|jO]jOJOJOjJOJOjOJOjJO|jO]jO}|O abesone Aunoy-jleH uesiy 0 ueaw Ayuop | Aunoy-jreH
JolHojHo(Bojo|Ho|Ho(dojyol ojofojojojL|jojojojofLjojL]lO}j b L]ELELL|OfjO]L abesane AUnoy-jleH wnwixen 2 wnwixew Aguo
ogloc|ocjoe|oc|oE|0E|OE|OE|OC]OE|OC|OE|OE|OE|OC|OE|OCE|OE|OE|OEJOE|OC|OE|OC]|OE|OE]OE | OE | OE | OE 13 ebeisne Aunoy-jeH
lejoc|ec|ec|se|oc|se|ve|ec|celic|oz|eb|er|ZL|oblsk|vileL]|ch]|Lbjorl6) 8|9S v]e]lc]!t 9leq Krewwins Ajyuop

1€ 62 8¢ L2 9T S ¢

o1

ST

[IH!]IrIIlI!lIIllI

0t

RSN NN

ejeq Buuojuoly abeseay Apnoy-jjeH pue Ajleq

St

Loz  9bessay Anoy-jeH wnwiup
cz a0eIeAY AINOY-JeH WIMmUXeR
L ]
aDeIaAY AINOU-JBH ueskW

0g —
abelany Ajeg
cE —

ATS abeIaAY AINOY-JBH

A sbeseay Aleg

6102 YdJe[\ 40 Yjuow ayj Jo LY JUIod uoissiwg je cw/bw saje[noijued Joj iy 0} sUoIssiwg paJoHuoly Ajsnonunuo) jo Buipodeay

levl €1/20/£2 1 | HIV H1oquInN wiod

10pUIA : Jojeiado

uojBuippag :uoyelelsul
10968edL / Yd3 : Iaquiny souala)ay Huusd

Page 31



(101e19dp ay) Jo sAneuasaldal e se ubts o} pasuoyiny)

B <oz a J«?EL MT.U Su\“@\wv\fw -paublg
NIN|N|JN|NIN|JN|INININ|IN|IN|N|N|N|N|JN|IN|[N|N|IN|N|NIN|N|N|NIJN|ININ|N &A\13 Spasoxg anjep $S90UBPB8IXS Jo WNg
AJALALTALTALTALTATALTALTALTALTALTALTALALTALATALTALALTALTALTALALTALALTALTALALALA LPIEA anjep [s] sAep pijeaul jo oN obelane
#o|so|soluo|so|soluojuo|uol ol o|o|ofo|lo|lojojojojojojofo|lo|lofjo]lo]lo|lo]o]o abesane Areq ] wnwixew Ajyjuoly freq
oLjorLjoijoLjoLjoLjoLjoLjoL|OL|OL|jOL|OL|OL|OL|OL|OLjOL]OL|OL OL]jOL|OL|OL|OL]OL]OL|OL|OL]OL]|OL A3 ebesone Aeg
HO|HO|HO|HO | BO|HO|HOjOj0l 00| OJ0O0]O|JOJO]jOJOJOjOjOjOojloOojOojojlojlojlo]jolo]oO 13 JO S92UBPI8OX3 JO ON 0 S92UEPS3IXD JO WNG
ojojojojyojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojolojolo synsai pijeAu| jo oN 0 s)|nsal pijeAu| [ejo]
HO|HO|HOo|BO|HO|HO|HO|NO|HO| OO OJOjOjJO|jO]J]O|jOjJOjOjoOo]joOojojoO]lo]lo]lojojo]o]oO abesoae Aynoy-yeH wnwiuiy 0 wnuwiuw Ajyuoly obeiare
HO|HOo|HOo|HO|HO|HO| OO0l 0 0jJ0|JO0jOjOojoOjojojojojojojojo]lo]lofojofjo]jo]o obeiae Ajinoy-jleH uesyy Q uesw Alyjuoy | Aunoy-jeH
HO|HO|HO| O HO|HO|BO|HO|sO0|l 0 0jJ0|JOjO|JOJO]JO|OCJOJOjJOojJojojJojojoJo]Jo]o]olo obetone Apnoy-jen winwixeyy 0 winwixew Ajyjuoy
pocjocjocjocjocjocjocjocjocjocjocjoc|oc|jocjocjocjocjocjocjocjocjoc|ocjocjocjoc|oejoc|oc|oc]|oe A3 sbesone Aunoy-jeH
lejog|6c|8c|Le|9c|sc|velec|cT|ic|oc 6|t LL|ob|GL|vi|EL T bL|OL]l 68l 2]9ls|Plele]t 3jeq Aewwns Ayuop
1£ oe 62 82 £z a9z SZ e £2 zz 1z 0z 61 8T L1 91 L $1 €1 T 11 0t 7] 8 £ a9 c

=
o

NN RN
T
e

0t

NN

ST

oz @besany Apnoy-eH wnuwiup

| o7 9DRIAAY AUNOY-JIEH WiNWIXeR

]
abRIBAY AINOY-JleH uealy

0€

—
abesaay Aleq
—

AT abelaay AInou)jeH

T
=
~

A13 abesary Ageg

ejeq buuojuop sbeseay Aunoy-jieH pue Ajieq

6102 Yydiely Jo yjuow Y3 4104 gV juiod uolissiwg je cw/bw saje|naijued 104 iy 0} suoissiwzg palojluoly Ajsnonunuo) jo buioday
eyl €1/20/€T / L HIV JoquinN wiio-

10PUIA : Jojelado

109e8€dl / ¥d3

uojbuippag :uone|esul

: 1aquInp SoUsljey Jwiad

Page 32



(101e19dO 3U1 Jo aanejuasaldal e se ubls 0) pesuUoyIny)

—U.MD =7, 91eQ tmtm\. s .@_:Umcm_w
NIN|N|N|N[N[N|N|N|N|N|N[N|IN|N|[N[N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|NIN|]N|N N|N ¢T3 SpasoXy anjep 0 S80UEPSIIXD JO B:w
AALALTALALALALALALALALALALTALALALALALALAJALALALA]JALALALA Al A SPIBA SNEA 0 skep pijeaul jo oN sbesone
so|uoluoluoluoluo|uoluojuo| v | v|s|elelelelr|elefje]c|ecl2|c]le]c]e]E L2 4 obesane Aleq S wnwixew Ajyuop Areq
A1 k4N KA1 k48 E40 R4 B41 44 K41 k49 k4 k41 k41 k41 k41 k4 k4 K42 k41 k40 k4 k4 k42 ke kA kA k4 KA ke kA k4 13 eBessne Aleg
yo|uo|so|no|vo| so| no| Bo | HO [wN|vaN| /NN N /N WAN] NG NL N N NN NG YN NN 9NN NN N A13 JO S8OUBPSBIXS JO ON 0 SSOUEPIIIXD Jo NG
ololo|o|o]lo|o|lo]o|lo|o|Jo|jo|o]Jo|Jojojo]Oo]JoOo|jOjojojojOjlOfOfO 0o synsal pleAu] Jo oN o] S}Nsa1 pieAu] [ejo L

poluoluoluo|solso|solsoluol el efele|v|elelec]e|vjr]Lbr]elt]e]efe]c €l7 abesone Aunoy-jleH wnwiuipy 3 wnuiuiw Ayiuop obesone

woluo|uoluo|soluo|uo|soluo| v | v|slelelele]lr|elec)c|e|e|c|ec]e]lc|E]E vl ofesone Aunoy-yley uesiy € ueaw Ajyuoy | Aunoy-jreH
yoluo|uoluoluo|so|uo|uolsol v | 2|6 s|v]els|ofv|elele|v]|c|e]s]|ofsS]|s 816 abesane Apnoy-jleH wnwixep 6 wnwixew Alyjuop

NN NN N N N NN N o e N N N N N N N NN N /N NN NN NN YN A3 9besane Aunoy-jleH
ie|ocl ez| szl 2zl oz szl vzl ez ez 12| oz|6L| L] zi|ob| st vi|er]er|irjor| 68| Lfo|S|v]Ee|C|l oeqg Krewuwns Alyjuoy

-

[
|
T

T
~ =]

I

U
=+

I T

T
-]
—

ejeq buuojiuoly abereay Aunoy-jleH pue Ajieq

Il
o
-

abesaay AInoy-yeH Winiuiulx
abeIaAY AINOY-JBH WMNLIXEK
]

abriaAy AINoY-jeH uealy

abesaay Areq

A3 abeiaay Anoy-jeH

AH 9bRIBAY AIBQ

61.0Z USJBY 4O YIUOW 3y} Jo4 LY JUI0d Uoissiwg je cwyBw ¢HN 404 J1y 0} suoissiwg paiojiuoly Alsnonuiuo jo Buipoday

BlUOWWY - }Y Y]V [JaqunN wiog

JopuiA : JojeladQ

uojBuippag :uone|eisu|

109€8ed.L / ¥dT : JeqUINN doUalajey Jilied

Page 33



(101e339d0 8Y) JO BAEUSSAIdRl B SB ubis 0} pasuoyiny)

b17sS¢=ggea UTYGNEA) SHE =) ) )G Poudis
NININJININININININININ|N|ININ[N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|NIN|N|IN|N|N|N &A\113 Spasoxg anjep 0 SS0UBP3a39X3 Jo WNg
AJALALALALATALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALA ZPIBA anjep 0 sAep pijeau jo oN obesane
HOo|Jojuo|uojuojuojuo|uosol el el L vle|s|ols|v|elelelelv]|s]|r]elelvrlclz]z abesane Aleg 2z wnwixew Ajyuopy Areg
chjerjerjebfeciferfzifer|erferjeijer)er|er|ecifzr]|ei|zfzi|er|ev|at|a]e]z|e|zv]ar]zilz]z A3 9beiane Aleq

HO|HO| HO | HO[HO| HO| HO | HO | 4O |'o/NJ'o/NJ'o/N|'o/N]w/NIAN| /N] /N W/N| /NN /N /N e NEen o oD i A3 JO S93UEpPIBOXD Jo ON 0 S90UBP39IXS JO WINg
ofofojojofojojojojojofjofo|jojojoJojJoJo|lo|jo|lo|lo|lo]Jo|o]lo]o|o]o]o S|nsaJ pljeau| jo oN 0 S|insai plleAu [ejo
sOo|Ho(sojHouo(yo|uo|uo|Mol el clefc]c|e| v v|cle|lele|lzlelelzlele]lzle]lz]z obelone Aunoy-jeH wnwiuy 4 wnwiuiw Aiyjuopy obesone
HojHofuojuojso(uoluoluojuol el el 2| vle|s|ols|v|elelelelr]|s|vlelelv]z]lz]z abesane Anoy-yey ueapy 4 ueaw Ajyuopy | Aunoy-jen
HOo|HolHo[BojHofoluouO|uOl s | S|t 8| 9|6 || 6|ofv|v]|s|s|s]z]|olv]|olor]lelely sbesone Aunoy-yey wnwixepw Ll wnwixew Ayuopy
VIN|'IINLEIN]OAN] V/N] TN TN NG /N N /N /N /N /NN N /NN /NN NG /N N N o s s o e[ e A3 abesene Aunoy-jey
lejoe|6zyse|ie|ozfse|vz|ez|ez|Le|oc]elL]|sL|zL|oL|st|pi|er|aL]|i|ot| 6] el z|lols]v]le]lz] aleq Atewiuns Ajyjuopy

£3 n_m m,_N w_m _mm m__m m_m v_N m_m N_N ﬁ_m c_N .m_ﬁ w_m n_ﬂ m_H m.._ 1 m“ JH N_—, ﬁ_._” am w 8 m m ,_.".. m T

! ! T ! ! y 1 1

RN WENENENREE T

g abRIBAY AUNOy-yeH wnwiup
Lot 20RIPAY AINOY-JRH WINWIXe
|
ab21aay AUnoy-yeH uesly

=21 —
= abetany 4eg
—+ 1 —
i AT3 30RIaAY AUNOY-jjeH
ER AR abeiany Aea
=81

ejeq bupioyiuol sbeseny Aunoy-JjeH pue Ajeg

610T UdJBN JO Yjuouw 3y} 04 ZV Julod uoissiwz je gw/Bw gHN 10) 41y 0} SUOISSIWT PaJoIUOH KIsnonunuoy jo Buiuodeay
BIUOWLWY - 2V H|V JJ8quinp Wwio4

Jopulp : Jojesado

uojbuippag :uong|elsuy|

109€8€d 1/ dd3 - JaqunN soualssay Jwiad

Page 34



(103e19dO 8U3 Jo anejussaidal e se ubis 0} pasuoyIny)

........................................... s g1p e s e wr_O_
b1 €6 2% S - )] YS) Peues
NIN|N|IN[N|N|N|N|N|N|N[N|N|JN|NIN|N|[N|IN|N|N|IN|N|N|N|NIN|N|N|N|N ¢\ SpadoXxg enjep 0 S9JUEPSIDXD JO WNG
ALALALALALALTALALTALTALTALALALAJALTALALALALALALALJALALALALALTATALALA PIBA SN[EA 0 shep pijeaul jo ON abelone
po|uo|uo|uo|so|uo|so|so|yo|syi|ort|octiozi|szy|ezl|LEL|8z{ocL|6ZL{ocL|0EL| LEV 2L 621 66T 6TLITEL|OEL|OEL[OEL sbesore Aleq 144 wnwixew Ayuopy Area
sol|sol|sol|eat|satisol|sat|sol|sol|sot|sot|saL|soL|solL|saL|sot|soL|SoL|5OL 52591 SO L SOLISOLISL|SO1SOL[59L|SOL|SoL SOl A3 ebesane Aleg
yol|uo|uoluolso|solsoluolsojo|lojoloflofjojo|lo|lojojojojolojojojojofo]Oo]O]oO A3 JO SBIUEPIBDXS JO ON o} S9JOUEPa8IXd JO Wing
olo]Jolo]Jo|lo|loJo|lo]Jo]o]o|lo|jo|o]Jo|o]J]ojo]Jojo]JojoOojo|JO|JOjOjO]|JOfO]O s)hsal plleAu] Jo oN 0 Synsal plleAuj [EJOL
nol|uoluo|so|uo|so|uo|solHo|Lzy|ch| ce|zoL 2Ll og|8LL] 98 |6k L{SOL{Z0LSLL LLL| ¥6 | LOL|OLLIBLLEBOLILLL|SLLLCL|BOL abesane Apnoy-jey wnwiuy ag wnuiuiw Ayluopw abesone
nolsoluo|uo|so| ol uo| so| o lski|ovi|octiezLiezl|ect| Ll B2 0EL|6ZL{0E|OE L LELIBZL|BZL|BTI{BZLIBTL|ZEL|OELIDEL|OEL abesane Aunoy-jleH uesiy Lel uesw Ajyuolyl | Anoy-jleH
yoluo|so| ol uo|so|uo|so|so|rsi|ss|ziy|BLL]ect|gsL|8r L 2SL zr Lol 1SL 6P L{BY LISEL[BSLIELL|EV L B L|PELICY LBGEL|BYL obesane Apnoy-jeH wnuwixep V6l wnwixew Ajyuop
0oti00F 00t 00%| 00F{00F]| 00P|00F|00F| DOY|00F| DOV 00| 00P| 00F| 00| 00F| 00| 00| 00F| D0F| 00F| 00F| 00| 00¥| 00F| 00F |00F|00F |00 | DOV, A13 abesene Aunoy-jleH
ieloc|6z|8z|iz|oz| szl ve|ez|cz|z|oz|6L|gL]Zr|oL]|st|bvi|er|cr]tLr|or] 68| Z|o9|S|v|E]|C]!} sleq Arewwns Ajyuop
e 08 62 8¢ 2 9 Lrd b2 g g 4 £ Z E
| | i 1 I | ! [ [ | | I 0
T T T T T T T | | ) I I =
os
- . _ . Foom
- - L] ] _lmmw
[ | Ap0z
m:amm abessay AUnoy-jeH wnuwiuy
mncmm ELEER %:oﬁgmx winwixep
S-0Sg 5 ]
3 abeiaay AUnoy-JeH uesp
=-00% —
m|mmv abetony Ajeq
3 ——
=, AE absay AUnouy-ey
mu_umm AB sbesary Aleg
2 pog

ejeq buuojiuol abereny Apnoi-jeH pue Ajieq

610Z YoJe\ Jo yjuow syj 104 LY Julod uolssiwg je cw/Bw XON 404 41y 03 suolssiwg paloyUO|y Alsnonuiuo) jo buipoday
[Lvl €1/20/€2Z / 9 W1V 1oquinN wiod

IopulA : Jojesado

uojbuippeg :uone|jesuy|

109€8€d1 / Yd3 * 13qUINN 8dUBIajay Jllsd

Page 35



(10je19dQ ay; jo sayejussaldal e se ubis 01 pasuoyiny)

Yy .@....umcm_w

NIN|N[N|N|IN|N|IN|N[N|N|N|NININ[N|ININ|IN|N|N|{N|IN|N[N|IN|NIN[NININ &A1 spa30X3 anjep 0 wwo:wvowoxmhm\Ezw
ALALALALALTALALALALTALALTALALALAJALALALALALALALALALALALALIALTALALA Pllep anjep 0 sAep pijeaul jo oy aberane
HO|HO|HO| HO|HO|Ho| HO| HO| O |5hLjer L sel gzt pEl|ob Lizetjoe|Lel e eet|et|eci| tet]ezy|betlszi|zeLlzet|zerLleet aberare Areq Skl wnwixew Ajyjuoly Aleq
S9L{591|5241931|591|591|SOL[SOL{59L|50L 501 59L159L SO 591|501 59k sat|sat|sat|soLset{sot|sat|sot|sot|sst|sot|sotlsatisol A3 sbesane Aieg
JO[HO|HO|Ho|Houo|Mojuofjso| ol o|jojojojojojojo|jojo|o|lojo]lo|lo|lo|lo]lo]loflolo A1 JO S3DUEPB30X3 JO ON 0 Se0Uepssdxe Jo Wng
ojojojofojofojojojojofojoflofjojofjo|lofojJofojofjo|lolololo]lo|lolo]o Sjnsal plleau] jo oN 0 s}insal pijeau| |ejo]
HO[HO|HO| HO|HO|Ho| sOo| HO|HO|BLLIBLI[0L LLLIZZL) €6 |bOY| 66 |SOL|LLL €8] 86| 6| 56 06| z8 |nct|cotati]zzi|izilvol abeisne Aunoy-jey wnwiuipy 8 winuwiuiur Ajyuop sbesone
HO|BO| HO|HO|HO | BO|HO [ O | BO|Shi|erl|selszL| Let|vel|oviizeL|oel] LelzeL|eel| Leileet|tet| 2z peil6zL|ectlzeL|zeLfeet sbesone Aunoy-jley uesyy eel ueaw Aoy | Aunoy-yeH
HO[HO|HO| O HO | HOJHO | BO | HO|08L|BSH|8SL| LaL|ee LS LlogzlesLiaL|zrLLatjogLionl ] aL|osilest|eotlert|ss o i|ivilzal|  oBeisae Aunoy-yen wnwixepy 08g wnwxew Ayuoly
00t{00+}00%]00%|00%] 00| 00¥| 0OF| 00F| 00F| Q0F| D0F| DOF| 00V D0Y| 00F| 0P| D0V DOF| 0G| DOV| DoY|0oY|0ak 0o+ | 0or|oor|aat|oorloorloor N3 ebeioae Aunoy-yrey
lejoej6z|ez|Le|oc|sc|ve|ez|ce|Lejoz|eL|gL|sr|otr)st vr]et|cL|tijor|l6|lelzlols]lv]lelz]ly aleqg Aewwns Ajyuopy
1€ oc m_N m_N N_N o_N m_N v_m _u_H m._._“ +T €1 T4 IT ot 6 8 £ g g |4 £ 4 T
—tt—Ft++F—FF—F T
T os
= = oE=m - - — - = ___ Fuom
s -|l|l||l = — B l||||_I W osr
L T-002
B méhN abieiany Anoy-yeq wnwyuipy
T-00¢ =
E 20RIRAY AUNOY-JEH WINUIXeR
4-0SE ]
3 abeIaAy AUNOY-geH ueaj
=-00¢ —_—
w:amv abeiaAy feq
3 —
3-008 AT3 20610y Aunoy-jieH
mu 0sg A3 abesany Aleg
3 909

6L.0Z UdJe| JO Y3uow 3y} 1o gV Julod u

ejeq Guuojiuoly sbeseay Aunoy-jjeH pue Ajeg

levl €1/20/€2 7 9 W1V Jequiny wio
J0pUIA : JojeladQ

olssIw3 Je gw/Bw XON Joy 41y 0} suoissiwg paiojuoly Ajsnonuuo?d jo Buiuoday

uojbuippag :uope|eisu)
109€8ed1 / ¥d3 - IsquinN aoualajey Jwiad

Page 36



(1oresado auy jo aayejuasaldal e se ubis 0} pasuoyiny)

.............................. (d J«MO.INN.@&ND WM“1<2.T€.H .\D:: - ‘M\Uwcm_w
A
NIN|[N|N|NIN|[N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|[N|N|N[N|N|N|[N|N|N|N|N|N|N|ININJN|N (A3 Spaa0X3g SNjEA 0 $S80UEPSIDXD JO WNG
A ATALTALALALALALTALTALALALALTALATALAJALTALALTALALALAIALATAJALTALALA SPIBA SNEA 0 sAep pijeaul Jo ON obersse
1o} H!%e] f7e] I17e] Fle] FTe] £To] HiTe] FiTe] AN WAN 4% WAN 4N RAN k43 NAA k4% 40 k4% BTN 2T k40 k43 K43 K43 K40 14 L1 A kx4 ebesone Aleq yx4 wnwixew Alyjuopy Aieg
os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os]os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os]|os| 0S| 0S| 0S| 0S| 0S| 0S| 0S|0S|0G]0S|0S|0S|0S A3 ebesane Areq
yo|uo|uolyso|solso|uo|solsolojojojojo]lojolojojojojojojojojojofjojojoOojojoO A3 JO S90UEPa3OX3 JO ON Q S9JUEPaIXS JO WNG
ololo]lolo]lolo]J]o|o]o]lo]o]o|jo]o|o|Jo|joOo]Jo|loO]jJO]JOJOfjoOjJO|JO]JOjJO|JO}JO]|O S}nsal plleAu| Jo oN 0 s)nsal pljeAu] [EjoL
no|uo|uo|uo|uoluo|solso|so] t|{or]orjor|or] 6| LL|bLjoOLjLL|LLjOLjOL| LLf L[ LL|2CL{OL]OL|OL]OL]|OL sbeiee Apnoy-yey wnwiuly 6 wnwiuiw AlyuoN ofesonre
jiTe] 1ile] ITTe] FiTe) Fite] Fi'e] Hi%e] FiTe) F1le] MAX MAN K44 HUY K44 NAA K44 H91 k44 k42 k412 512 023 k412 K42 k42 ke K 4 B L a K ofiesone Anoy-jleH uespy €l ueaw Ajyuoly | Aunoy-jeH
yo|uoluoluo|noluo|uo|soluo|cr| el cz|er|er|ot|oL| L oz|6L]SL|aL]sL]gL|8L]8L|EL]8L|8S|EL |9l |SCL obesane Aunoy-jleH wnwixeyy <748 wnuixew Alyiuon
pozloozloozloozloozloozlooz] oozl ooz|ooziooz] 00z] oozl oozlnoz|ooz|0og| 002|002} 00Z|00Z|00T|00E00Z]00Z{002|00Z|00E|00Z|002{002 A3 sbesane Aunoy-jley
1eloe|ez| 8z| 2zl 9z sz| ve|ez|zz|1z|oz| 6L gL L1 oL Sk pvL|EL|ZL|Lb|OL| 6|8 L9 ]|S|Vv|€]C]! okeq Arewwns Alyuopy
1€ a_m m_N m_N h.m m__m m_m v_m m.m N_m. ﬁ_m n__N mm m,._.ﬁ m_ﬁ 91 mﬂ v_H m_m N_w ._”_ﬁ c_._ _m .w _h _m m w _m _N T
T T T T T T T T | | | 1 = - o
e ll 3
-] ]
E 5 0s
T-o01
k abelaay Aunoy-jeHd wnuiup
—0gT -
B: abeseAy AUNOY-JEH WInUIXep
3 =]
- afeiaAy AUnoy-jleH uespy
<002 iy
-4 abeiany Aleg
1 oz AB s0eRAY AInoyyeH
1 A8 sbelaay Ajeg
Loog

61L0¢C Yyole\ JOo yjuow ay

ejeq buuojiuoly sbereay Apunoy-jieH pue Ajeq

[vl €1/20/€2 7 G WV JequinN wiod
I0pUIA : JojeradO

31404 LV JUl0od uoissiwg Je cwybw ZOS 403 1y 0} suoissiwg palojiuoly Aisnonuiguo) jo buipoday

uojbuippag :uojej|eisuj
109e8ed1 / Yd3 * JaquunN sousisjdy Jilisd

Page 37



(101213d0 2Y3 J0 BARIUBSAIdal B SE UBIS 0} pasuoyiny)

BN SHEE ) v

N

NIN|IN|NIN|NIN|NIN|N{N|N|IN|N|N|N|N[N|N|IN|N NIN|IN|IN|N[N|N|N|N &A\13 Spasox3 anjep 0 S90UBPOBIXS JO WNg
ALALTALTALTALALATALALALTALALALALALTALALALALALTALALALALALALALALALALA ZPliep anjep 0 sAep pijeaul jo oN obeiane
HO|HO|HO|HO|BOHO(HO|HO|HO| ZL| LL|oT| 8L 218 Lz|6L]6L]8L]|8L]|ot|oz]|e6L]6L]6L|gL]st]czlerlat] L abessne fleg jora wnwixew Ajyjuoly Areq
05| 05) 05| 05| 05| 05| 05| 05| 05] 05| 05| 05| 05| 0S| 0S| 0S| os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os]|os]|os|os|os]os]os A3 aberene Areq
Bo|Ho|Ho|so(soso|Ho(sojsojofojojJojojJojlolojojojJo]l]o]lo|lo]lolo]lo|lo]lolololo 13 10 S92UEP330X3 JO ON 0 S83UBpasdX JO WNg
ofojojojojojojofjojJojojojojojJo]Jojo|Jo]Jojo|lo|lo]lo|lo]o]lo]o|lo]ololo Sjnsai pleauj jo oN 0 S|insal pijeau] |ejo |
JO|HOHO O Lol HO|HO[HO|HO| v vL|SLISL L] er|oL]st)ot]st|ot]piL]ot]ot]ot|ct|ot|vL]v]zilsilzt abesone Aunoy-yeH wnuiuyy 4} wnuiuw Ajyuoy obesone
HO|HO|HO| HO[HO|HO|HO[HO|HO| L1 ZL|oT|8L| ZL|8L|Lz| 6L 6L 8L|8L]|oL|oz|6L]6L|6L]sL]zL]czleL]gr] 21 sbesane Anoy-jrey ueapy 6l ueaw Alywoy | Aunoy-jey
HO|HOHOlHOHOHO[HO(HOo(HO| 1z| 62| Lo ec| 2|6z 8e| Le|ze| 6e| 62| vr| 62| 9t | ec|oc| be|oz| 65| 22|22 | 26| obeiane Aunoy-yen wnwixep 19 wnwixew Alyjuopy
00002 002]002}00€}002}00Z|002|002]002|002}00Z| 002|002} 00Z]00Z|00Z}00Z|00z|00Z|00Z|00Z] 00z 00E|D0Z|00ZlnoZloozlonzlnozlboz A3 ebeiare Aunoy-jey
le|oef 62| 8| Lz|oc|se|ve|ec|cg|ic|oz|eL]|gL] L ot]|s v er|ci]ti|ot] el z|lols]vylelz]L sleq Aewwns Ajyuopy
1€ Jm MN 82 m_m O_N JN _n“w m_m N_N w__m c_m mﬂ m"m n_H a1 m.." T v_H m._H N"H H_H m"H _a __w m b_m_ _m ﬂ “n “w T "
ST e T
E = m = m = LI
m m 1
3-o0t
m aberany Aunoy-yeH wnwu
mL.va mew><z._:om¢_nI WMWY
= -~ mneuéﬁrﬁﬁx ueap
- abesany Aleq
m- 06z A %eﬂ%éimx
3 AT3 abeIBAY Aeg
DoE

ejeq Bunoyuoly sbeseay Anoy-jey pue Apeq

6102 YdJe Jo yjuow ayj 1o ZY Juiod uoissiwg je gw/Bw gOS 10} J1y 0} SUoISSIWT paiojiuoy A|snonunuo) jo Buipodoy

[zv] £1/20/€Z / § ¥Iv 49quinN w0y

10pUIA : JojeradQ

uojbuippag :uone|eisy|

109€8€d L/ dd3 * J1aquinN sousisjey Hiad

Page 38



(101e12dO 3y} JO BARIUSSBIdRL B SE UBIS 0] pasuoyiny)

NIN|IN|N|N|IN|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|IN|N|N|N|IN|N|N|NJN|N|N|N ¢N\13 Spaadxg dnjep 0 S80UEpOsOXa JO H:w
AALALTALTALTALTALALTALTATALALALALTALALALALALALALALALALAJAJAJALALALA ZPIBA SN[ 0 shep pieaul jo oN abesone
wo|uol|uo|uo|uo|vo|sofsoluol z| ezl ezl v|clele]lelr]ele]lc|lelr|elele|c]|e]E sbeisne Ajleq 4 wnuixew Ayjuoy Area
os|os| os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|[os|os|0s| 0S| 0S| 0S| 0S| 0S| 0S]0S|0S |0S|0S A3 abeiane Aleq
yo|uoluo|so|so|nolsolsolsolojojojofofo]Jojojofojojojojojojojojofo]jOo]jO]oO 13 JO S90UBPaBOXS JO ON 4] S80UBpPO8IXS JO WNS
ololo]lo|lo]lo|Jo]lo]Jo|o]lo]o]Jo|lo]Jo]jofjo]o|jo|lOo]O]jOjOjOjOojO]OJO]|O|O]O synsal pleAu] jo oN 0 Synsal plieau] [ejo]
yoluoluoluoluo|soluc|uolso| o v v v|ojofsle|lc]c ey L]ojtL]jLjo obessae Apnoy-jieH wnwiuy 0 wnwiuiw Aiyjuoi obesone
yoluo|uoluoluo|uo|uoluo|uo| ezl ez |clelelelv|e]lecle|le]|lv]e]le]e|jc|c]|E abeiane Aunoy-jleH uesiy € ueaw Ajyjuopy | Aunoy-jey
soluo|uo|uoluolsoluolsoluo| c| s lor| 6| s v v|s| 2] 2]|ejs]|e|ls|s]|ie]o]s]|oje]e]ot abeisne AUnoy-yleH wnwixep L wnwixew Ajyjuoly
oot|oot|oot|oot|ootjootjoot]oor|oot|oot|oot|ooi|ooi|ooi|ooL{ooi|oot|0o1|00L{00L|001|00L|O0L]00L|004|001|{00L|DOL|00L 00} |00} A3 ebelane Aunoy-jeH

ie|oe| ezl 8z| 2z)| 9z se| ve| ez ez vz oz 6L sL| L] ob|si|pL|EL|Th]|bbfoL| 68| L|O9|S|Vv]|E]|C]|!t aieqg Arewwns Ayuow

TE 0E 6¢ 8Z £2 9c S¢ ¥ €2 t44 1z oz &1 a1 LT 91 18 1 €1 44 i1 o1 6 g L 9 € 4 E Z T

H g = m
B 10
m ]
-+0%
to9
- abeiaay Apnoy-yeH Wnuiuil
Jgg  obesany AUNOY-JEH WNWXeW
5 =
g abeIsAy AInoy-jieH uesiy
1 not =
8 abuany Aleg
i ira T
. AT3 20m1aAY AUnoU-)eH
1opt AT 3be3AY Aeq

ejeq buuojuoy abessay Ajnoy-jleH pue Ajeq

6102 USJE JO YIuow ay3 Jod LV Julod uoissiwg je gw/Bw OO 40} 41y 0} suolssiwg patojuoly Ajsnonunuo) jo Buiioday

[1v] €1/20/€2 1+ WiV :JaquinN wiod
10pUIA : JojeradQO

uojbuippag :uonejeisu)

109€8edL / ¥d3 - 12qUINN 8dUaIsiay JWiad

Page 39



(101e39d0 BY) JO BANRJUSSaIdal B SE ubis o0} pasuoyiny)

. . L (;- MO‘NN w«ND .bﬂk.... .Umcm_w
S P S~ 555075
NfN|ININ|IN|N|ININ|N|IN|N|N|N|N[N[N|N|N|{N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|NININ <A1 Spaeax3 anjep 0 S30UBPa8IX® JO WNg
AfATALATAJALALALALALALAJALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALA ZPIBA anjep 0 sAep pijeaur jo oy aberore
Ho|so|sofHofuojHolHo|olHol el 2|l eelz]le|v]v]s|v]s]v]lelrls|lslvlp]y cleldy abeiare Aeq g winuixew Ajyjuop Ateq
05| 05| 05] 05)| 0S| 05| 05| 05| 05[05|05[05|0S|05|os|os|os|os|os|os|os|os)os|os|os|os|os|os|os)os|os A3 sbeiaae Areg
JOlHoHoj O HolHofHo|Hojof ofofofjojojojojojojojojo|lo|lo|loflo|lolo|lolololo A\13 Jo S32UEpaIXa J0 ON 0 S92UEBPa30X® Jo Wng
ojojJojojofojojojo|Jo|lojojo]JojoJoloflo]lo|lo]loJo|lo|lo|lo]lo]o]olo 0of|o synsai pjieAu] Jo oN 0 S}nsal pljeAu| |ejo
HolHolBojuo|solBofso|sofuof L Lz rjolzfile]lec]lelelelt]el]lel]lelzlzlz obesoae AHnoy-yeH wnuwiuiy 0 wnwyuiw Ajyjuopy abeione
JOolHo|HolHO|Ho|Ho|Hojuojkol ezl ele|c|elv|P|s|v|s|vlelr]|s|slviviviiels 14 aberaae Aunoy-je ueapy + uesw Ajyuoly | Ainoy-yen
HojHo|HolHoHo(HoluoHOuOl S| S| s|s|e|e]oz]s|e|e]|ov|e]|o]lz|olz]lols]ls]v]s abesone Alinoy-yeH wnuwixeyy 9l wnwixew Alyuop
001{00L{00+{001{00L|D04{00L]004{DOLJ00E|00L{00L|DOL|DOL|00L 0G| 00L{DOL|00 L[DOL |00 L{ooL oo Lnot|not|ooi]oot|oot [ootfaoi|oot A3 obeiane Aunoy-jrey
lejoe|6zf8c|ie|oz|se|ve|ez|cz|iz|oz|eL|aL|sL|ob|si|vi|ct]|ei]|ti|orle]|e]lz]lols]|v]elz]: aleq Aewwns Ajyjuopy
1£ _u_m m_N m,_m h_m DHN m_m v_N m_m i 1z ae el BT L1 at St T El 4y 11 UES &6 B L g g 14 E Z T
T T T T T T T T | ..D
] e |
m 3
ulmm
+-ov
09
3 abeisay AUNOY-yeH winuiuiy
mram Abeizay z:._ocl.m_m: WNWixey
4 n
8 a0e1say AJnoy-yeH ues
1 oot ¥ AInoy-yey ueay
= abelany Aieq
1 gzt —
] A3 2DeiaAy Aunoy-yeq
”._uawﬁ A3 a6eisry Aeg

ejeq Supojiuoly sbeseay Apnoy-ye pue Areqg

610¢C UdJe\ JO Ljuow 8yj o4 gV julod uoissiwg je gw/bw Q9 10} 41y 0} suolssiWg palojiuo|y >_m=o::=coo Jo Buipoday
[evl e1/20/52 1 v Iy 19quinN wio

10pUIA @ Jojelado

uojbuippag :uone|jeisu)

109€8€d.L / ¥d3 - Jlaquiny soualajoy Jlwiad

Page 40



(1o1839d0 BY3 J0 BA)EJUSSBIdaI B SE UBIS 0] PasLOyINY)

NIN|N|IN|IN|NININ|[N|IN|N|IN|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|N|IN|JN|N|N ¢N\13 SpesoXxg anjep 0 mmo_._m_u\wmmsm.v BR:W
AALALTALALALATALALALALPALALALALALALALALAJA]LAJAJAJALAJALJALALALA ZPIBA anjeA 0 shep pifeaut Jo oN sbelone
noluoluoluoluo|uo|uoluoluol el el s|s|s|vls|v|ole| |22 2]L]S|¥v|S]€]¢2 obesane Aleg L wnwixew Ajyuop Ateq
oL{otjor]or|or|or|orjor|orjorjor|or|oL|or|or|oLjorjorjorjoLfoLjoL|oLjoLjoL|OL|OLfOL]OL]OL]OL A3 obesane Areq
po|uo|uol|uo|so|uo|so|nolsolo|lofofo]ofofjofjojojojojojojojojojofjojojojojo 13 J0 S8OUEPSBOXS JO ON 0 S80UBpIRDXI JO WG
olo|lo|lo|lo]lojo|lo|lo]lo|lo]o|o|JoOo|JojOo|]o|]OfO|JO|O]J]O|jOjOfO]JOjO]jJOfjOfO]O Synsel pileAu] jo oN 0 sjnsal pi[eAu] [BjoL
wo|poluoluoluo|uo|uoluoluol |z z| vl elv|v]lc|r|Ss]|Ss|c|o)o]sS]|Ss|oe|c|c|r]t]} obesone AlINOY-jeH wnuiuiy 3 wnuiuw Ajyuop abesose
soluoluo|voluoluo|soluoluol el el s|s|slvls|v|olo|2|e|l2)2]L]LfL]S|P]|S]€E]c< abelone Aunoy-jjey uespy S uesw Ayjuoly | Apnoy-jiey
woluol|uoluo|uo|uoluolsoluol v | 2| el 2| e|2|s|9)s|8]e|s|e|s]s]|or|8]8]|IL][9]5]S ebesone Apnoy-jleH wnwixep 23 wnuwixew Aiyuopy
0oloo]|o9]| 09| oo|os|oo]oo|oo|oo]ooloa|oa|os|oo|og|oofjog]|og|oo]|09]|09|09]09f09f09)03]|09]09|09|09 A3 ebesane Aunoy-jleH

1e|oc| 2| 8z| zz| oz|sz|ve| ez zz] 1z|oz|eL|es]| Lot sk pr|[EL|c|r|joL]| 68| Lfjo|S|P|E]C] 2e] Arewwns Ajyjuopw

1€ _u_m m_w w_m h.m anm m_N v_m ﬂ N_N ﬁ_m o_m m_ I _w_.n h_._” @_ T m_._.. ¢_.H £ N_ 1 i a_._” _m m ._.H ~_u _m _? m _N ._,_nu 2

T T T T T T T T L T I Ik T T f T e T

T
=
™~

NN RSN YA NN

-0L

- 08

Lidpppgitinng

peQ Buuojiuop abelsay Aunoy-jeH pue Ajleq

06

abriaay AunoyyeH Wnwiuk

aberaAy APNOY-JIEH WNWIXER

abessAy Aunoy-jeH uesiy
09 —
abeiany Aleg
—

AT sbesaAY AUNOU-YEH

AR abesaay deg

61.0Z USJBI JO YIUOW 3Yj Jod LY Julod uoissiwg je swybui |OH 104 iy 03 suolssiwg paiojuoly Ajsnonuiuo jo buiiodsy

uojBuippag :uone|eIsu|

[Lv] €1/20/€2 / € IV 4equnN wiod
10PUIA - JojeladQ

109€8ed.1 / Hd3 - JoqUINN Sduslajay Jwisd

Page 41



T T e

(1o1e39d0 BY) 40 BAREUSSaIdal B SE ubis o} pastoyiny)

N Y ) A

NfN|NIN|IN|NIN|N|N|ININ|N|IN[N|IN[N|N|N|N|IN|N|N|N|N|IN|NIN|INININ]|N EN13 Spa20x3 anjep 0 S90UBPOBOXI Jo WNg
ALALALTALATALALALALALALTALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALA A &PIBA anjep 0 sAep pljeaur Jo oN obelare
JojHolho|uo|yo|sojuolso|sofl s sl 2z 2|9 s|o|slzlz])slz]s)le]lz]lelslols]lelel:s aberene fleg 8 wnuwixew Ayuopy Area
oLjoiLjoLjoLjoLjoLjol|oLfov|oL|oL|oLfoL|or|oL|or|oL|aL|or|or|or|orjos|or|ot|ot]or]|or|or|or]or A3 ebesane Areg
HO|Ho|Hojyosoflojuoluolsojojojo|lofojofoflofojojo|lolo]lo]lo|lo|lo]lo|lolo|lo]o /\'13 Jo S8duepsa0x2 Jo oN 0 S9OUBPO8OXd JO WG
ofojofjojojojojojojojJojojo]Jo|loJo|Jo|Jo|Jo|Jo|lo|Jo|]o]Jo]lolo]lo]ololo]o S)nsal pijeAu) Jo oN 0 s)insal pljeAu| [gjo]
JOo|Ho|Hojuo(sojsojo|uoluol v | v v | S| v v v]|s|slolzsz]ls]|olololzlzlzlz]lz]lole obeiaae Aunoy-yeq wnunupy 4 wnwiuiw Ajypuopy obessre
JOo[Ho|HO(HO|UO|O(HOHOfHOl s s | 2|2 9fs|ololz]zlelelcelz])lz)le]ls]lols]lelsl: obeione Aunoy-yey uespy / uesw Ajyyuopy | Aunoy-yey
Jo|Ho|Ho|uojHo|Ho|uo|uo|so| 9| 2 |szfjoL| 2| 2| 8| e|6]|6|6|Ltt|6|o]le|ls]le]lslor]ls]s]ttL abesane Aunoy-yeH wnuwixep 8T wnuixew Ayuop
09]09|09|09|09[09]09|09|09|09]|09|09|09]|09|09|09]|09|09|09|09]|09|09)09]09]|09]09]09]os]|o0ologlas N3 ebessae Aunoy-yeH
lejoe|e6z|8c|Lz|oz|se|ve|ce|cz|Lz|oz|eL|sr|zL|oL]|sk|vi|ct|z|rtfor|ele]lz|lals|vlelzl: Eliel Aewwns Ajyjuopy

1£ 0E 62 8z iz az =14 124 EZ 2z 1z 0z 6T

_m ,_w Z a g
1 I

—_—

i

ejeq Guuojuoly sbessny Alnoy-jjey pue Ajeq

01
o0z
3-0¢€
m- op  @bereay Aunoy-jeH wnuwsup
EN ac I0RIDAY AUNOY-JIEH WINWIKER
E |
3 o9 sbeiany AUnoy-jeH uesyy
m abesaay 4eq
-+ 0L —
o ATA abelaay Aunoy-jeH
= s A3 3abeiaay Aleg
106

6102 UdJEIN 4O Yjuow ay3 o4 gV julod uolssiwg je gw/Bw [QH Joy J1y 0} suoissiwg paiojiuoly A|Snonupuos jo Buipoday

[Vl €1/20/€2/ € HIV Jaquiny w04
10PLIA - JojeladQ

uojBuippag :uonejesu]

109€8€d L/ dd3 - 1aquinN sousisjey Jwied

Page 42



(101e12d0O 8U) J0 sAjelUSSaIdal B SB UbIS 0] pasioyiny)

NIN|INININ|IN|[N|N|N]N[N|N|N[N|IN|N|N|N|N|NINJN|N|N|N|N|N|N|NJN|IN &A1 SpaadXg SnjEp 0 S2oUEBPadIX? JO NG
AALTALALALALATALALALALALALALALALALALAJAJAJALAJALAJAJALAJALJALA LPUEBA an[ep 0 skep pijeAul Jo ON abessre
1o| so|so|uo|so|so|so|uoluol o]l o]lo]ojojo|lo)jojojojojojojojojofojojojo]jO]oO obesane Aieq 0 wnuwixew Alyuop Areg
orlot|ot|or|or|or|or|or]or|ot]or]or|oLjorfjorfoL|or|otforfor|oLjoLjor|jorfjoLfoLjoljoljoL]oL]OL A3 sbeisne Aleq
wo|uso|soluo|so|uo|uoluojusol ofojolofo]lojojojojo]jofojofjojojojojojo]jojoO]oO A13 10 S80UEP33OXS JO ON 0 S9OUEPIBIXS JO WNG
ololololo]o|lo|o|o]o]o]lo]o|]o|lo]Jo|]o]Jojo]Jo]jo|jofjojojojofojofOofO]oO Sjnsal pljeAu] Jo oON 0 SynsaJ pljeAu |ejoL
solsolyolsoluo|so|uo|uolsol ool ofofojojolojo]jojojojojojojojojofO]jO]O]O abesene Aunoy-jieH wnuuiy 0 wnuiuiw AlYIuop abesone
so|solyoluo|so|so|uo|solsol o]l o] ojojojofjojojo|jofojojojofjojofojojojOojO]}oO abelsone Ainoy-yeH uesy 0 uesw Ajyuoly | Alnoy-jey
yol|yo|so|uo|volso|uo|uo|uol o] ofo]o]|+|ojojojojojojojojojojojojojLjoO]jOjoO obelone Aunoy-jeH wnuwixep 3 wnwixew AYwon
oz| ozl oz| 0z 0z oz| 0z]| 02| 02| 02| 02| OZ| OZ| 02| OZ| O | OZ| OZ| OZT|OCZ| OCT| 02| OZ| OZT| OZ|0OZ| 0T | 0T | 0T |0OT | OC A3 ebeiane Aunoy-jleH

1e|oe| ezl sz 22| 92| sz| ve| sz | zz| 1z| ozl 6L gL ZL]| oL stfvi|Et|fecifrr|or] 68| L]|o9fs|v|EfC|l! sieqg Krewuwns Ayopw

1£ 82 22 oz 474 e o 44 Z 0z 6 8T 11 at g1 FI £er [4 1T 0 & 8 L 9 < € [ 1

11

€1

N A
T

eje Buuojiuoly Sbeieay Apnoy-jleH pue Ajeq

0t

abelsry Apnoy-yeH winwiup

abeiany AUNOY-jEH WNUIXEW

abeiaay AUnoy-jeH ueap
4 —
abesay Aleg
—

Ford A 20eiaAy Apnoy-yeH

AT sbrisay Aleg

6102 US4\ JO Ujuow ayj 104 | Julod uoissiwg je cw/Bw DOA 104 41y 0} suoissiwg pajojiuoly Ajsnonuiuo) jo Buipoday

[1v] e1/20/€2 / 2 HIV “JequinN wiod

Jopuip : Jojerado

uojbuippag :uonejeisy|

109e8ed 1 / Hd3 - 18qUINN 30USILSY JIllled

Page 43



(101e19d0 8y} jo aayeuBsaIdas B SE ubis o} pasuoyiny)

" TJMQNN aeq H\.\\ml g.\\ﬂw\“\m pauBig
NINfNININJNIN[NIN|INININININ|N|N|N[N|NIN|{N[N|NIN|NIN|IN|NININ N &A1 Spasoxg anjep S90UBP39DX3 JO E:w
AJAJATATATALALTALALATALALARALALALALALALALALALALALALALALALA Al A LPIBA anjep 0 sAep pieaul jo oN obelane

HO|JO 4080 HO|BOojsojsOo|sO0| 0JojJofojJojofofo|lo]jo|lo|loJo|lo|lo]lololo]lolo olo obesane Aleq 0 wnwirxew Ajyjuopy Areg
oLjoLjorfolfoLjobjoLjoLjoljoL|oLjoLfoLfoLjoLjorfjoL]|or|fot|ar]or|or|oL|oL]or]orlos oLjoiL|ot|oL N3 3beiane Aeg

dojsojlio|sojuo|uojuoisolsolojojojlo|olojo]lojolo]lo]lolololo]lo 0Ojojo|o]o|]o /\13 JO S92UEP330X3 JO o 0 S30UBDP39IXS JO WNg
ojojofofojojojojojojofofloflojofjo|lo|lofjo]lo]lo|lo]o|lo]|o]o ojojojojo S}|nsal pi[eAu) jJo oN 0 sjinsal pijeau| ejo

Holsojsosofsojdofsosojsolojojofojojojofofjojo|lojo|lo|lo|lo]loflo]olololola abeioae Apnoy-jey wnwiuyy 0 wnwyuiw Ajyuopy abelone

JojuojlojuojbojHolsoluoluojofofojojojojojofoflojojojoflofoflo]lo]lolololo]o abesone Aunoy-jley ueapy 0 ueaw Ao | Anoy-yey

Jojuojuojsofsojuoluo|uolsolojoflojojojoflojoflo]lololololo]lololo ojojlojo|o obesee Aunoy-jey winwixepw 0 wnwixew Ajypuopy
ocjozjocjocjoc|ozfozfoz)oz|oz|oz|oz|oz|oz|oz|oz]|oz|oz|oz|oz|oz]|oz|oz]ozlozloz 0c|oz|oz|oz|oz A3 eBeraae Aunoy-jley
lejocjezyec|Lec|log|sz|ve|ez|zzfiz|oz 6L zL|ot]|sfvi]|er]|e|it)ot|l 6] el z] 9 s|lvlelz]|t aleq Aewwns Aguop

15 1]3 62 82 iz 9z a4 174

Il|l!|ll
[T2]

1)

I I |
T
'p]
-

Lt

T
wy
™~

T Y A

ejeq Bupojuo sbelsay Apnoy-jiey pue Ajieq

aberaay Aunoy-yeH wWnuuy
abriaay Aunoy-yeq WINWIE

L]
abesaky Aunoy-yeH ueaj
0¢ —
abeisay Aeq
—

AT 80esany Aunoy-yeH

AT3 aberaay Aieq

6102 YdJeN Jo Luow sy} 1o gy Julod uoissiwg Je cw/Bw JOA Joj 11y 0} sUoISSIWT patojuoyy A1snonuiuog jo Buipoday

[zvl €1720/£2 1 Z Wiy 1aquiny wio4
JopUIA : 103eidO

uojbuippsg :uonejeisu

109€8ed1 / Hd3 - JaquinN sousiajey pulad

Page 44



Agenda Iltem 8

SOUTH LONDON
WASTE PARTNERSHIP
L 4
Report to: South London Waste Partnership (SLWP)
Joint Waste Committee
Date: April 2019
Report of: SLWP Management Group

Author(s): Annie Baker, Strategic Partnership Manager

Chair of the Meeting: Councilor Brunt, Chair of SLWP Joint Waste Committee

Report title:
Risk Report

Summary:

This report summarises key risk areas which are facing the partnership boroughs in
relation to the waste disposal functions of the Joint Waste Committee.

Recommendations:

Joint Waste Committee is asked to note the contents of this report.

Background Documents:

Confidential risk register is held by the Strategic Partnership Manager, Annie Baker.

Page 45



1.1.

2.2,

BACKGROUND

This report summarises key risk areas for the waste management
contracts overseen by the Joint Waste Committee, based on the South
London Waste Partnership team'’s risk register; this report summarises the
key risks that should be noted at committee level. The full risk register is
considered at the SLWP’s Management Group and Strategic Steering
Group.

KEY RISK AREAS

Areas have been included in this report where they are considered
strategically important, for example because they are high scoring in
terms of impact and/or likelihood, or have changed in score.

Recycling materials market changes

Following significant changes to global recycling material markets over the
last year (for example China’s changed import requirements), the value of
some recycling materials has decreased significantly. As reported at the
last Joint Waste Committee meeting, this has some impact on borough
budgets (as some of our material generates income depending on the
recycling’s sale value) and also has an impact on our contractors as
recycling income is built into the financial models of several of our waste
management contracts. This continues to present a risk and the impact of
a worsening level of income for recycling will continue to be managed
through budget and contract management processes.

As a consequence of the market changes, reprocessors remain
increasingly strict on the level of contamination they will accept in the
recycling material. Material which is too contaminated requires further
sorting if any of the material is to be recycled. Extra sorting increases the
reprocessing costs for recycling and so some impact on budgets
continues to expected, as above.

Action currently undertaken to protect the quality of our recycling:

e An increasingly harmonised approach to recycling across the SLWP
area means that messages about what to recycle can be simple and
effective across our whole region. All boroughs now follow broadly the
same recycling regime.

e Material which doesn’t meet the contamination thresholds is being sent
to specialist sorting facilities where the recyclable material is extracted.

e The poorest quality material we collect typically comes from communal
collection containers where it is difficult to identify who might be putting
the wrong material in the wrong bin, which can make communications
work hard to target; we're working with organisations and networks to
look at what we can learn from others and what good practice we can
share in this area.

Page 46



2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

e The communal containers are typically collected on separate collection
rounds which protects all the other recycling material we collect from
unnecessary contamination.

e We're closely monitoring the quality of the materials being collected for
recycling and the processes being followed to manage contamination.

Further planned activity to reduce contamination:

e We're looking at how we can best use and target our communications
activities to further reduce contamination. This will form a part of our
next communications plan.

e The “Destination Recycling” films, described in the communications
report to this Committee, will highlight the importance of sorting
materials into the correct containers.

Impact of recycling value changes on our contracts

Financial issues within contracts can have significant impacts on contract
performance, likelihood of contract disputes and ultimately contracts
cannot operate unless they are financially sustainable. Pressures such as
the current global recycling market must be carefully considered when we
formulate our approach to procurement of contracts and services. The
changes and unpredictability of the recycling markets, which affects all our
contracts, mean that this remains as a key focus for us at the present
time.

Defra strategy consultation

Following publication of their Resource and Waste Strategy, Defra are
currently consulting on the following matters:

Reforming the packaging producer responsibility regulations in the UK
Introducing a deposit return scheme for drinks containers in England,
Northern Ireland and Wales

e Measures to accelerate consistency in recycling for both households

and businesses in England
In addition, the Treasury is currently consulting on a plastic packaging tax.

These consultations run until mid-May 2019. The SLWP and the boroughs
are currently considering the proposals set out by Defra with a view to
both participating in the consultation and in assessing any risks that the
proposals might present to the boroughs and the partnership.

Brexit

At the time of writing this report, a ‘no deal’ Brexit scenario remains a
possibility. Analysis of the potential impact of Brexit has been undertaken
with our contractors. PotentBB@Baét€ including those relating the



4.2,

workforce, recycling markets and supply of consumables have been
considered. We do not expect any type of Brexit to prevent us from being
able to safely dispose of our residual waste because of the waste disposal
arrangements we have within the partnership’s own area. Recycling
markets and exports could be impacted by Brexit and in particular any
scenario where transport movement through UK ports are affected.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Joint Waste Committee note the contents of
this report.

IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

Legal

There are no legal considerations arising directly from the
recommendation in this report

Finance

There are no financial considerations arising directly from the
recommendation in this report

Page 48



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Phase A & B Contract Management Report
	Quarterly Dashboard Q3 2018-19

	6 Budget Update Month 11 2018/19
	7 Communications and Engagement
	8 Risk Report

